DAKOTA VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT



STUDENT HANDBOOK

2024-2025

1150 Northshore Drive North Sioux City, SD 57049

Phone: (605) 422-3800 Fax: (605) 422-3807

Table of Contents

Contents

WELCOME	7
Intent of Handbook	8
Notice of Nondiscrimination	9
GENERAL INFORMATION	10
School Day	10
Contact Information	10
Registering at Dakota Valley	10
Food Sharing and Allergy Awareness	
Elementary School-NUT FREE	
Student Birthdays	11
Pets on Campus	
Visitors	11
SECTION ONE:	12
BASIC SCHOOL RULES AND GENERAL PRACTICES	12
Attendance	12
Pregnant and Parenting Students	
Backpacks, Purses, & Duffle Bags	
Bills	15
Books and Supplies	15
Breastfeeding and Lactation	15
Bulletin/Video Boards	
Bullying	
Reporting Bullying	
Bullying Investigations	
Candy and Gum	
Cell Phones and Other Electronic Devices	
Cheating, Plagiarism, and Academic Dishonesty	19
Child Abuse and Neglect	19
Class Dismissal	20
Classroom Behavior	20

Classroom/Homeroom Placement	20
Closed Campus	21
Communicable Diseases	21
Communicating with Parents	22
Complaint Procedure	22
Complaint and Appeal Process	22
Computer Network Use by Students	26
Conferences	28
Copyright and Fair Use	29
Damage to School Property	29
Discrimination and Harassment	29
Dress Code	30
Driving and Parking Personal Vehicles	30
Drug Free Schools	30
Emergency Contact Information	31
Evacuations	31
Food Service Program	31
Notice of Non-discrimination	32
Field Trips	32
First-Aid	32
Head Lice	32
Health Problems Limiting Activities	33
Homeless Children and Youth	33
Illness or Injury at School	33
Immunizations	34
Lockers and Other School Property	34
Lost and Found	34
Medications	34
Media Center	35
Opting Out of Assessments	35
Parental Involvement	35
Parties	36
Personal Items	36

	Physical Education	36
	Physical Exam	37
	Pictures	37
	Police Questioning and Apprehension	37
	Protection of Student Rights	37
	Public Displays of Affection	37
	Rights of Custodial and Non-Custodial Parents	38
	Recess	38
	Self-Management of Diabetes or Asthma/Anaphylaxis	39
	Smoking and Tobacco	39
	Sniffer (Drug) Dogs	39
	Student Assistance	39
	Student Fee Policy	40
	Student Illness	40
	Transfer of Records Upon Student Enrollment	40
	Complaints	40
	Student Schedule Changes	41
	Tardiness	41
	Telephone Calls	41
	Title IX	41
	Transportation Services	41
	Transportation to School	41
	Transportation to Activities	43
	Video Surveillance and Photographs	43
	Weather-Related School Closing	44
	Withdrawal From School	44
S	ECTION TWO: ACADEMIC INFORMATION	45
	Academic Lettering	45
	The National Honor Society and National Junior Honor Society	45
	Honor Roll	45
	Class Rank	45
	Course Guide - High School	45
	Bell Schedule - High School	46

Bell Schedule - UE/MS	46
Seniors Only- Semester Test Reward System	47
Seniors Only – Senior Privileges	
Report Cards	48
Grades	49
Academic Work Session – Grades 4-8	49
Missing/Incomplete Assignments Grades 4-12	49
Consideration for Entrance to Middle School Accelerated Math Course	ses 50
To Maintain Enrollment in Middle School Accelerated Math Courses	50
Consideration for Entrance to Pre-Algebra	50
Consideration for Entrance to High School Accelerated Algebra 2	50
Grade Point Average (GPA)	50
Other Academic Awards	50
Co-Curricular Awards	51
8th Grade Promotion	51
Valedictorian	51
Honor Cords	
Graduation Speakers	51
Selection of Senior Academic Representatives	52
Early Graduation	52
Graduation Requirements	52
SECTION THREE: STUDENT DISCIPLINE	55
General Discipline Philosophy	55
Forms of School Discipline	55
Leaving School	56
After School Sessions and Detentions	56
Saturday School	56
In-School Suspension	57
Short-Term Suspension	57
Weapons and/or Firearms	58
Long-Term Suspension	58
Hearing Procedure - Long-Term Suspension	59
Expulsion	59

RI	RECEIPT OF HANDBOOK	
Ti	tle I SCHOOL-PARENT COMPACT	72
	Student Code of Conduct	68
	Reporting Requirement to Law Enforcement	68
	Grades 4-12 Expectations/Consequences Chart:	62
	Grounds for Discipline:	61
	Hearing Procedure - Expulsion	61

WELCOME

Dear Students and Parents:

On behalf of the faculty, administration, and board of education, we welcome you to another school year. We are looking forward to helping your children reach their learning potential and achieve their educational goals in the upcoming year.

Please read this handbook carefully. Students and their parents are responsible for knowing the rules, regulations, and procedures covered in this handbook. The student handbook is an extension of school policies and has the force and effect of board policy when approved by the board of education.

This handbook contains information of value to every student and parent. It contains explanations of school regulations and procedures necessary for our school to run smoothly and efficiently. If you are ever in doubt about what is the right thing to do, ask a classroom teacher, or speak with the building principal.

Sincerely,

Dr. Tonia Warzecha

Superintendent

Intent of Handbook

This handbook is intended to be used by students, parents, and staff as a guide to the rules, procedures, and general information about this school district. Students and their parents must become familiar with the handbook, and parents should use it as a resource and assist their children in following the rules contained in it. The use of the word "parents" refers to any adult who has the responsibility for making education-related decisions about a child, including, but not limited to biological parents, adoptive parents, legal guardians, and adults acting in loco parentis.

Although the information in this handbook is detailed and specific on many topics, it is not intended to be all-encompassing or to cover every situation and circumstance that may arise during a school day or school year. This handbook does not create a "contract" with parents, students, or staff, and the administration may make decisions and rule revisions at any time to implement the educational program and to assure the well-being of all students. The administration is responsible for interpreting the rules contained in the handbook. If a situation or circumstance arises that is not specifically covered in this handbook, the administration will make a decision based on applicable school district policies, and state and federal statutes and regulations.

Notice of Nondiscrimination

The school district does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age in its programs and activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups. The following person has been designated to handle inquiries regarding the nondiscrimination policies:

Name: Bill Clements Title: Activities Director Address: 1150 Northshore Drive, North Sioux City, SD 57049 Telephone: 605-422-3820 E-mail: Bill.Clements@k12.sd.us

For further information on notice of nondiscrimination, visit https://ocrcas.ed.gov/contact-ocr?field_state_value=684 or contact:

Office for Civil Rights U.S. Department of Education One Petticoat Lane 1010 Walnut Street, Suite 320 Kansas City, MO 64106

Telephone: 816-268-0550 FAX: 816-268-0599 TDD: 877-521-2172 Email: OCR.KansasCity@ed.gov

For additional prohibited discrimination and related information, please review school district Policy 3053 – Nondiscrimination.

GENERAL INFORMATION

School Day

Students are to leave the school grounds after dismissal unless participating in a school-sponsored activity or enrolled in Y Club. Parents must arrange for their children to leave school promptly at the end of the day.

Elementary

Students may not arrive on campus prior to 7:40 a.m. First bell rings at 8:10 a.m. Tardy bell rings at 8:20 a.m.

School dismissal is staggered based on mode of transportation.

- Car riders and walkers dismiss at 3:10 p.m.
- Bus riders at 3:15 p.m.

Upper Elementary/Middle School

Supervision for students begins at 8:00 a.m. First bell rings at 8:20 a.m. Tardy bell rings at 8:25 a.m.

School is dismissed at 3:20 p.m.

High School

Supervision for students begins at 8:00 a.m. First bell rings at 8:20 a.m. Tardy bell rings at 8:25 a.m.

School is dismissed at 3:15 p.m.

Contact Information

Elementary Office	605-422-3840
Upper Elementary/Middle School Office	
High School Office	
Special Services Director	

Registering at Dakota Valley

Upon registration, all new students will be required to provide to the school office:

- 1. Proof of date of birth through a state certified birth certificate or affidavit in lieu of birth certificate. (SDCL 13-27-3.1)
- 2. Record of immunizations and a health certificate from a licensed physician. (SDCL 13-28-7.1)
- **3.** Proof of residency documents (Accepted documents include: a current rental/lease agreement, purchase agreement, or utility bill in the name of the parent/guardian. Monetary amounts may be blacked out for privacy. (SDCL 13-28-9

Food Sharing and Allergy Awareness

All food brought to school with the **intent to share** with others must be in the original packaging with an ingredient list. This includes all birthday treats, shared classroom snacks, and food intended for classroom parties. Student lunch items should not be shared, including any items brought in by parents/guardians to be eaten with their child at lunch (i.e. fast food, pizza, cookies, etc.).

Elementary School-NUT FREE

Any food that contains peanuts or tree nuts in any form is **not allowed** in Dakota Valley Elementary School.

Labels stating "may contain" are allowed in classrooms WITHOUT allergies only. Please contact your child's classroom teacher or the school nurse to verify if these products are allowed in your child's classroom.

Labels stating "manufactured or processed on equipment or in a facility" are allowed in all areas of the school and in all classrooms.

In a classroom with an identified food allergy, all food entering the classroom for any reason must have a label that lists the product's ingredients. Parents/guardians will be notified each fall if their child is in a classroom that requires labels. If at any point in the school year you have a label/food sharing question regarding your child's classroom, please contact your child's classroom teacher or the school nurse.

Student Birthdays

Students in Grades JK-5 may choose to share a food treat or small item with their classmates to celebrate their birthday or half-birthday. All food treats must follow the food sharing and nut guidelines for the building and be checked by a staff member. All food treats must include all materials/utensils to serve it, and either be pre-cut (i.e. cookie cake) or individual servings (i.e. cupcakes, cookies, packages). The classroom teacher will determine the best time for distribution. Any item/event beyond a small, shared treat (Example: balloon bouquets, presents, games/activities) will not be allowed at school to prevent loss of instructional time or excessive classroom disruption.

Pets on Campus

Pets are not allowed in school buildings without prior approval from a building administrator.

Visitors

All adult visitors to campus must enter through the main building entrance, ring the bell, and upon entry, proceed to the office. A visitor badge will be required to be worn while visiting our campus. All visitors must check out at the building office when leaving.

If you are planning to eat lunch at school with your child, please contact the school office by 9:00 a.m. so that a meal can be ordered for you. Visitor meals will be charged to your child's lunch account.

Minor children who are not enrolled at Dakota Valley may not attend classes with a Dakota Valley student.

SECTION ONE: BASIC SCHOOL RULES AND GENERAL PRACTICES

Attendance

Required Attendance

Every person residing in the school district who has legal or actual charge or control of any child who is of mandatory attendance age shall cause that child to attend a public or private school regularly unless the child has graduated from high school or has been allowed to disenroll pursuant to Policy 5001.

Mandatory Attendance Age

All children who are or will turn five years old before September 1 of the current school year are eligible to attend kindergarten. Children who are or will turn six years old before September 1 but who have not turned eighteen years of age are of mandatory attendance age. Any child who transfers from another state may proceed in a continuous educational program without interruption, even if that student has not previously attended Kindergarten or does not meet the age requirements described in this policy.

Attendance Exceptions

This policy does not apply when a child is provided with alternative instruction in accordance with state law.

Attendance Officer

Each building principal is designated as an attendance officer for the district. Each building principal, at his or her discretion, may delegate these responsibilities to any other qualified individual. The attendance officer is responsible for enforcing the provisions of state law relating to compulsory attendance. This responsibility includes but is not limited to filing a report with the county attorney of the county in which a student resides. Compensation for the duties of attendance officer is included in the salary for the superintendent or designee.

Excused Absences

The following absences may be considered excused if they are confirmed by communication to the school from the student's parent/guardian:

- **1.** Physical or mental illness of the student (a physician's verification is required after four (4) consecutive days of absence for illness)
- 2. Severe weather
- 3. Attending a wedding or graduation
- 4. Appearance at court or for other legal matters
- 5. Personal or family vacations

Excessive Absenteeism

Data shows a student missing 10% or more of the school year results in substantial harm to the student's learning. To avoid this harm, the District will use the following procedure to incentivize attendance.

After 5 missed days, the principal or designee may have a discussion regarding attendance with the student or family, depending on the circumstances related to the absences.

After 10 missed days, the principal or designee will contact the family and/or student to discuss issues and support surrounding attendance. A meeting may be scheduled regarding the student's absences, and a plan for consistent attendance may be developed. Additional support may be provided.

Students missing their 15th day of school will have a letter sent to the parents/guardians, the superintendent and the State's Attorney.

Exempt Absences

Absences for the following reasons will not be counted toward truancy:

- Absences due to school activities
- College Visits (Maximum of two per year)
- Medical appointments (physician verification required)
- Death in the student's immediate family
- Religious holidays

Students not in attendance for these reasons will still be responsible for completing all required schoolwork.

Absences and HS Course Credit

- After 10 (ten) absences (exempt absences do not count toward this total) from any class in a semester, credit *may* be withheld for that class, and students will be placed on an attendance plan or removed from that class.
- The student may appeal to the principal the decision to withhold credit. Student appeals must be made in writing to the Principal within 5 school days of the school's written notice to the student. Once an appeal is submitted, an attendance committee will hold an attendance hearing and will implement an attendance plan or withhold credit for the class. The attendance committee will consist of three members of the Dakota Valley High School Staff.
- Failure to submit a written appeal within five school days will result in the student being removed from the class(es) involved and assigned to a study hall for those specified time periods. If credit is to be withheld for 3 or more classes, student and parent/guardian must attend a meeting with the school administration to discuss plans for alternative placement, and/or an attendance plan.
- If the parents/guardians cannot or will not attend an attendance meeting, then the school will meet with the student, without parental representation, to make a determination.

Absences and Co-Curricular Eligibility Requirements

Students who plan to participate in a school activity, which takes place after school hours, must be in attendance that school day for the full day. Students must be present before 9:00 am to constitute a full day. Emergency cases, which allow for deviation from this, are given

consideration by the Head Coach (or supervisor), Athletic Director, and High School Principal.

Absences due to illness

The school district will contact parents if a student becomes ill at school. A student who is absent due to illness has one day for every day of absence to complete missed assignments, unless otherwise directed by the teacher.

Planned absences

Parents who know in advance that a student will be absent must notify the school office at the earliest possible date. Students who will be absent for reasons that can be anticipated, such as routine medical appointments and school activities, should complete any work required by the teacher before the absence. Parents should make every attempt to schedule medical and other appointments after school hours when possible.

Students are obligated to:

- 1) Complete all class work in advance for any absence that can be anticipated as required by the teacher.
- 2) Attend school a full day before attending practice or participating in a scheduled student activity except in cases of family emergencies or pre- arranged absences.
- 3) Check out of school at the office if leaving school during the school day.
- 4) Make up any and all work that is assigned by teachers as make-up work for the instructional time that has been missed.

Parents are obligated to:

- 1) Notify the appropriate building office to inform the school of the reason for each absence by 8:30 a.m.
- 2) Submit a doctor's statement, if requested, for each period of absence due to illness that exceeds four consecutive days.
- 3) If applicable, submit a doctor's statement for each period of absence on a given day to remain eligible for participation in activities on that day.

Pregnant and Parenting Students

Students who are pregnant or parenting are encouraged to continue participating in the district's educational and extracurricular programs. Students who anticipate deviations from their regular school experience or accrue absences due to pregnancy or parenting should notify their building principal as early as possible to discuss their educational programming. The building principal will work with the student to develop a plan to assist the student in participating in district curriculum and extra-curricular activities. The District will also inform the student of the Title IX Coordinator's contact information and that the Title IX Coordinator can coordinate actions to prevent sex discrimination and ensure the student's equal access to the District's education program or activity, including the coordination of reasonable modifications based on the student's individualized need.

Backpacks, Purses, & Duffle Bags

Students in Grades 4-8 will be assigned a locker in the academic locker area. All personal

items, backpacks, personal electronic devices, toys, and books should be kept in lockers. The school is not responsible for items lost or stolen from lockers or backpacks. Students shall not store in their lockers or backpacks, or have in their possession, any items that are expressly prohibited or violate safety, health, or standard morality. Examples are weapons, drugs, alcohol, tobacco, or any items that may jeopardize the welfare or safety of other students. Students will use only the locker assigned to them.

Students may use their own backpacks to bring their belongings to and from school each day. Backpacks, shoulder bags, purses, or any bag aside from the school provided laptop bag will not be permitted in the classroom. If there is a legitimate medical reason that requires use of a backpack or purse/personal bag during the day and in the classroom, there must be documentation provided by a doctor. This documentation needs to be updated and provided at the beginning of each school year. The principal will make the final determination based on the provided medical documentation. A parent may have the doctor call or email the principal to explain the necessity of a backpack for all day use. If there is an obvious need for a student to use a backpack for each class (i.e., student is on crutches or has an injury to hand/arm/shoulder), the principal or nurse can make that determination without need for a doctor's note.

Bills

<u>Lunch Account:</u> Payment may be made online through Infinite Campus or by cash/check remitted to the building office. Payment may also be made directly to the lunch cashier.

<u>Dual Credit College Courses:</u> Classes taken through WIT (Western Iowa Tech) are paid directly to Dakota Valley School District and remitted to the HS Office. Classes taken through the SD Regental System are paid directly to the individual university through their online payment system.

<u>Advanced Placement, ASVAB and PSAT Tests:</u> Payment is made to Dakota Valley School District and remitted to the HS Office.

<u>Fines, Insurance, Activity Passes & Other Supplies:</u> Payment is made to Dakota Valley School District and remitted to the individual building office. Some items may be purchased directly through myschoolbucks.com.

Pursuant to board policy, the district will assess an additional penalty as imposed by the school's bank for any check returned from the bank for insufficient funds.

Books and Supplies

Students must take care of books and other supplies provided by the district. The school will assess fines for damage to books and school property.

Students must supply their own consumable items such as pens, pencils, tablets, notebooks, erasers, and crayons. Supply lists for students will be provided as appropriate at the beginning of the school year.

Breastfeeding and Lactation

In order to accommodate lactating and breastfeeding students, the district will provide reasonable opportunities to express breast milk or breastfeed in a place, other than a bathroom, which is shielded from view and free from intrusion from district students, employees, and the public. The district will also provide a location for students to store

expressed breast milk in or near the location designated for students to express milk to create the least amount of disruption to the student's participation in class or activities.

Students who wish or need to express breast milk on a regular schedule must work with school administrators to create a schedule that accommodates the student's needs while facilitating education to the maximum extent possible.

In order to prevent interference with the educational process, no student shall express breast milk within school classrooms or buses. Nothing in this policy limits the authority of the administration to impose consequences consistent with South Dakota Student Discipline Law and other state and federal law.

Bulletin/Video Boards

Bulletin/video boards are maintained throughout the building to communicate general information, material, and school announcements.

Bulletin board or electronic publishing space may be provided for the use of students and student organizations for notices relating to matters of general interest to students. The following general limitations apply to all posting or publishing:

- 1. All postings must be approved by the appropriate building principal or designee. Students may not post any material containing any statement or expression that is libelous, obscene, or vulgar; that would violate board of education policies, including the student code of conduct; or that is otherwise inappropriate for the school environment.
- **2.** All postings must identify the student or the student organization posting or publishing the notice.
- **3.** Material shall be removed after a reasonable time to assure full access to the bulletin boards or electronic publishing media.

Bullying

Students are prohibited from engaging in any form of bullying. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention defines bullying as "any unwanted aggressive behavior(s) by another youth or group of youths who are not siblings or current dating partners that involves an observed or perceive power imbalance and is repeated multiple times or is highly likely to be

repeated." South Dakota statute defines bullying as:

"A pattern of repeated conduct that causes physical hurt or psychological distress on one or more students that may include threats, intimidation, stalking [as defined by state law], physical violence, theft, destruction of property, any threatening use of data or computer software, written or verbal communication, or conduct directed against a student that:

• Places a student in reasonable fear of harm to his or her person or damage to his or her property; and either

- Substantially interferes with a student's educational performance; or
- Substantially disrupts the orderly operation of a school.

Bullying also includes retaliation against a student for asserting or alleging an act of bullying."

The District's administrators will consider these definitions when determining whether any specific situation constitutes bullying. Both of these definitions include both inperson and cyberbullying behaviors.

The disciplinary consequences for bullying will depend on the severity, frequency, duration, and effect of the behavior and may result in sanctions up to and including suspension or expulsion. Students who believe they are being bullied should immediately inform a teacher or the building principal.

Reporting Bullying

Students who experience or observe bullying behavior must immediately report what happened to a teacher or administrator. Students may always confer with their parents or guardians about bullying they experience or witness, but the students must also ultimately report the situation to a teacher or administrator.

Bullying Investigations

School district staff will investigate allegations of bullying using the same practices and procedures that the district observes for student disciplinary matters. In no circumstance will school district staff be deliberately indifferent to allegations of bullying.

Candy and Gum

Students may not bring candy or gum to school unless they have prior permission from their classroom teacher or the administration.

Cell Phones and Other Electronic Devices

Students may not use cell phones or other electronic devices while at school, except as permitted in this handbook.

In no event shall photographs or video recordings be taken or made in restrooms, locker rooms, or other areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy. Students who violate this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion.

ELEMENTARY, UPPER ELEMENTARY & MIDDLE SCHOOL

In the Elementary, Upper Elementary, and Middle School, students are not permitted to use their electronic devices, including cell phones, smart watches, and earbuds, from 8:00

a.m. through school dismissal. This includes during passing periods, recess, and during lunch.

Students may use cell phones or other electronic devices on the school sidewalks and in the common areas of the school before and after school, so long as they do not create a distraction or a disruption or utilize their device inappropriately. Students may not use cell phones or other electronic devices while they are in locker rooms or restrooms.

Students must leave their cell phones and other electronic devices in their lockers/backpacks during the school day.

When traveling for school activities students may not use cell phones or other electronic devices while riding in a school vehicle unless they have express permission to do so from the vehicle's driver or advisor/supervisor.

Students are personally and solely responsible for the security of their cell phones and other electronic devices. The school district is not responsible for theft, loss, or damage of a cell phone or any calls made on a cell phone.

Students who violate this policy may have their cell phones or other electronic devices confiscated immediately. The administration will return confiscated devices to the student at the end of the day, unless there are extenuating circumstances. Students who violate this policy may, at the discretion of the school's administration, be subject to additional discipline, up to and including suspension or expulsion.

The taking, disseminating, transferring, or sharing of obscene, pornographic, lewd, or otherwise illegal images or photographs, whether by electronic data transfer or otherwise may constitute a crime under state and/or federal law. Any person engaged in these activities while on school grounds, in a school vehicle or at a school activity will be subject to the disciplinary procedures of the student code of conduct. Any student found to be in possession of obscene, pornographic, lewd, or otherwise illegal images or photographs will be promptly referred to law enforcement and/or other state or federal agencies, which may result in arrest, criminal prosecution, and possible inclusion on sex offender registries.

HIGH SCHOOL

Students may use cell phones or other electronic devices on the school sidewalks and in the common areas of the school before and after school, so long as they do not create a distraction or a disruption or utilize their device inappropriately. Students may not use cell phones or other electronic devices while they are in locker rooms or restrooms.

Students may use cell phones throughout the school day at the discretion of the teacher and/or administration.

When traveling for school activities students may not use cell phones or other electronic devices while riding in a school vehicle unless they have express permission to do so from the vehicle's driver or advisor/supervisor.

Students are personally and solely responsible for the security of their cell phones and other electronic devices. The school district is not responsible for theft, loss, or damage of a cell phone or any calls made on a cell phone.

Students who violate this policy may have their cell phones or other electronic devices confiscated immediately. The administration will return confiscated devices to the student at the end of the day, unless there are extenuating circumstances. Students who violate this policy may, at the discretion of the school's administration, be subject to additional discipline, up to and including suspension or expulsion.

The taking, disseminating, transferring, or sharing of obscene, pornographic, lewd, or otherwise illegal images or photographs, whether by electronic data transfer or otherwise may constitute a crime under state and/or federal law. Any person engaged in these activities while on school grounds, in a school vehicle or at a school activity will be subject to the disciplinary procedures of the student code of conduct. Any student found to be in possession of obscene, pornographic, lewd, or otherwise illegal images or photographs will be promptly referred to law enforcement and/or other state or federal agencies, which may result in arrest, criminal prosecution, and possible inclusion on sex offender registries.

Cheating, Plagiarism, and Academic Dishonesty

Students may not cheat, plagiarize, or otherwise participate in any academic dishonesty in any form. Prohibited behavior includes:

- Obtaining, attempting to obtain, or aiding another person to obtain credit for work by any dishonest or deceptive means.
- Lying.
- Copying another person's work or answers.
- Sabotaging or destroying the work of others.
- Discussing the answers or questions on a test or assignment unless specifically authorized by the teacher.
- Taking or receiving copies of a test without the permission of the teacher.
- Using or displaying notes, "cheat sheets," or other sources of unauthorized information.
- Using the ideas or work of another person as if they were your own without giving proper credit to the source.
- Submitting work or any portion of work completed by another person.
- Failing to give credit for ideas, statements, facts, or conclusions which rightfully belong to another person.
- Failing to use quotation marks or other appropriate means of attribution when quoting directly from another person or source.

A student who cheats, plagiarizes, or otherwise participates in any academic dishonesty is subject to discipline, which may include no credit for assignment and other measures as appropriate.

Child Abuse and Neglect

School employees will report suspected abuse or neglect of a child as required by state law and school policy. South Dakota law defines an "abused and neglected child" as a child:

• Whose parent, guardian or custodian has abandoned the child or has subjected the child to mistreatment or abuse;

- Who lacks proper parental care through the actions or omissions of the parent, guardian or custodian;
- Whose environment is injurious to his welfare;
- Whose parent, guardian or custodian fails or refuses to provide proper or necessary subsistence, supervision, education, medical care or any other care necessary for his health, guidance, or well-being; or
- Who is homeless, without proper care, or not domiciled with his parent, guardian or custodian through no fault of his parent, guardian or custodian;
- Who is threatened with substantial harm;
- Who has sustained emotional harm or mental injury as indicated by an injury to his intellectual or psychological capacity evidenced by an observable and substantial impairment in his ability to function within his normal range of performance and behavior, with due regard to his culture;
- Who is subject to sexual abuse, sexual molestation or sexual exploitation by his parent, guardian, custodian or any other person responsible for his care;
- Who was subject to prenatal exposure to abusive use of alcohol, marijuana or any controlled drug or substance not lawfully prescribed by a practitioner as authorized by state law;
- Whose parent, guardian or custodian knowingly exposes the child to an environment that is being used for the manufacture, use or distribution of methamphetamine or any other unlawfully manufactured controlled drug or substance.

Class Dismissal

Classes are in session from the ringing of the tardy bell until the teacher dismisses the class. The bell at the end of the period is not a dismissal bell, and students may not leave their classrooms until they have been excused by their classroom teacher.

Classroom Behavior

Student behavior and attitude in the classroom must be cooperative, respectful and engaged in learning. All students must:

- arrive to class on time;
- prepare for class with all necessary materials;
- be considerate of others;
- respond promptly to all directions of the teacher; and
- take care of school property and the property of others.

Teachers will establish classroom conduct rules that students must obey.

Classroom/Homeroom Placement

Grades JK-6

Each spring, there is considerable discussion about placing children in classes for the next school year. This is a matter that we do not take lightly at our school, and the staff spends countless hours forming well-balanced classes in which all children will have an

opportunity to learn and to grow in their academic and social skills. It is hoped that a frank review of our procedures for class placement of students will alleviate the need for parents/guardians to individualize their concerns or make requests for specific teachers. When classes are structured, we follow a clear set of guidelines. Classes are formed into deliberate heterogeneous groups with the following in mind:

- An even boy-girl balance.
- A full range of aptitudes within each class.
- An even proportion of abilities and learning styles across the classes at each grade level.
- An equal number of students in each class on a grade level.
- An even proportion of children with English language proficiency.

Once these factors have been considered, teachers begin to build a class of children who show promise of working well together. At this point, attempts are made to match pupil and teacher personality style. Quite understandably, these decisions are based upon observations made by the teachers during the course of the year. While we welcome your input about your child's individual learning needs, we trust that you understand that your comments constitute just one of the many factors that we consider in forming classes. We will only honor room requests when extenuating circumstances exist. If a parent/guardian feels they have good reasons to make a request, they need to pick up a form from the school office and return it by April 15th. The final decision on class placements resides with the teachers and administration.

Closed Campus

The school campus is a closed campus. All students shall remain on the school campus during the hours that school is in session unless released by the building principal, the building principal's designee, or as permitted by this policy. The building principal or designee will release a student only upon confirming that the student has permission from a parent or an authorized adult. Nothing in this policy shall prevent the school from sending a student home when the student is ill.

A High School senior may leave campus as part of Senior Privileges. See section on Seniors Only- Privileges.

In addition, High School students may leave campus:

- upon completion of their semester tests as permitted by the building principal, or
- as part of an approved curricular activity.

Communicable Diseases

Any student who has contracted a contagious disease may be restricted from physical attendance at school until the student is no longer contagious. Generally, individuals with a communicable disease will be restricted only to the extent necessary to prevent the

transmission of the disease, to protect their health and rights of privacy, and to protect the health and safety of others. If there are questions regarding the communicability of your child's health condition or if you know your child has contracted a contagious or communicable disease or condition not otherwise specified in board policy or this handbook, please call the school nurse.

Communicating with Parents

Parents shall be kept informed of student progress, grades, and attendance through report cards, progress reports, and parent/teacher conferences. Grades are kept up-to-date on Infinite Campus in grades 4-12. All families have access to Infinite Campus and may check student grades and progress regularly.

Parents will also be notified of their student's possible failure to meet graduation requirements. Other pertinent information will be communicated to parents by mail or by personal contact. Official transcripts of student progress, grades, and attendance will be sent to other school systems upon the student's transfer when the district receives a written request signed by the student's parent or guardian or upon being notified that the student has enrolled in another school.

Complaint Procedure

Good communication helps to resolve many misunderstandings and disagreements. This complaint procedure applies to board members, patrons, students and school staff, unless the staff member is subject to a different grievance procedure pursuant to policy or contract. Individuals who have a complaint should discuss their concerns with appropriate school personnel in an effort to resolve problems. When such efforts do not resolve matters satisfactorily, including matters involving discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, or age, a complainant should follow the procedures set forth below.

A preponderance of the evidence will be required to discipline a party accused of misconduct. This means that the investigator must conclude that it is more likely than not that misconduct occurred.

Complaint and Appeal Process

Good communication helps to resolve many misunderstandings and disagreements. This complaint procedure applies to board members, patrons, students and school staff, unless the staff member is subject to a different grievance procedure pursuant to policy or contract. Individuals who have a complaint should discuss their concerns with appropriate school personnel in an effort to resolve problems. When such efforts do not resolve matters satisfactorily, including matters involving discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, or age, a complainant should follow the procedures set forth in any specific policy addressing those areas or the procedures set forth below. Allegations of sex discrimination covered by Title IX will be addressed through the board's Title IX policy.

References to "coordinator" in this policy refer to the board-designated coordinator for the

applicable area, such as the Section 504 Coordinator for allegations of disability-based discrimination.

A preponderance of the evidence will be required to discipline a party accused of misconduct. This means that the investigator must conclude that it is more likely than not that misconduct occurred.

Complaint and Appeal Process.

- 1. The first step is for the complainant to speak directly to the person(s) with whom the complainant has a concern. For example, a parent who is unhappy with a classroom teacher should initially discuss the matter with the teacher. However, the complainant should skip the first step if complainant believes speaking directly to the person would subject complainant to discrimination or harassment.
- 2. The second step is for the complainant to speak to the building principal, coordinator, superintendent of schools, or president of the board of education, as set forth below. Anyone with questions about the appropriate person to speak with may request clarification from the superintendent.
 - a) Complaints about the operation, decisions, or personnel within a building should be submitted to the principal of the building.
 - b) Complaints about the operations of the school district or a building principal should be submitted in writing to the superintendent of schools.
 - c) Complaints about the superintendent of schools should be submitted in writing to the president of the board of education.
 - d) Complaints involving discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, or age may also be submitted at any time during the complaint procedure to the applicable coordinator. Complaints involving discrimination or harassment may also be submitted at any time to the Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education: by email at OCR.KansasCity@ed.gov; by telephone at (816) 268-0550; or by fax at (816) 268-0599.
- 3. When a complainant submits a complaint to an administrator or coordinator, the administrator or coordinator shall first determine whether another applicable procedure is required by policy or law and if so, direct the complaint to the appropriate person to follow that procedure. If not, the administrator or coordinator will promptly and thoroughly investigate the complaint, and shall:
 - a) Determine whether the complainant has discussed the matter with the accused party.
 - 1) If the complainant has not, urge the complainant to discuss the matter directly with the accused party, if appropriate.
 - 2) If the complainant refuses to discuss the matter with the accused party, the administrator or coordinator shall, in his or her sole discretion, determine whether the complaint should or must be pursued further.
 - b) Strongly encourage the complainant to reduce his or her concerns to writing.

- c) Interview the complainant and, if necessary, the accused party against whom the complaint is filed, to determine:
 - 1) All relevant details of the complaint;
 - 2) All witnesses and documents which the complainant believes support the complaint;
 - 3) The action or solution which the complainant seeks.
- d) Respond to the complainant. If the complaint involves discrimination or harassment, the response shall be in writing and shall be submitted within 180 calendar days after the administrator or coordinator receives the complaint.
- 4. If either the complainant or the accused party is not satisfied with the decision he or she may appeal the decision to the superintendent. The superintendent may assign a qualified designee to hear any appeal. This provision applies to appeals under the board's policies governing complaints of discrimination or harassment, including Title IX and any other policy with a separate grievance or complaint procedure, unless that other procedure includes its own appeal process. All requirements for appeals within any other policy apply, and in addition to those requirements, the following also apply.
 - a) The appeal must be in writing.
 - b) This appeal must be received by the superintendent no later than three (3) calendar days from the date of the decision.
 - c) For complaints addressed through other applicable procedures that do not include a separate investigatory process, the superintendent will investigate as he or she deems appropriate.
 - d) The superintendent will prepare a written decision and provide it to the complainant and any other person entitled by law to receive the appeal decision. For complaints involving discrimination or harassment, the superintendent shall submit the decision within 180 calendar days after the superintendent received complainant's written appeal. Appeals to the superintendent from complaints involving discrimination or harassment are final once the superintendent delivers the written decision, as are all other appeals/complaints to the superintendent unless the complaint can be appealed on the limited grounds to appeal to the board below.
- 5. The board's role is to set policy, establish and implement a budget, and evaluate the Superintendent. The board does not manage the daily operations of the school district entrusted to its administration unless required by law or policy. Because of the board's statutory roles, it does not hear complaints or appeals that may involve oversight or discipline of students, staff, or others, unless those involve the Superintendent as discussed below. The board does not hear complaints or appeals based on allegations of discrimination or harassment unless otherwise required by law. The board will hear appeals only in the following circumstances:

a) When the complaint is about a board policy, not implementation of the policy;

b) When the complaint involves school expenditures that have been or must be approved by the board; or

c) When the board is required by law, policy, or contract to hear a complaint or appeal.

If a complaint involves those limited grounds and a party is not satisfied with the superintendent's decision regarding the complaint or appeal, he or she may appeal the decision to the board.

- a) This appeal must be in writing.
- b) This appeal must be received by the board president no later than ten (10) calendar days from the date the superintendent communicated his/her decision to the complainant.
- c) This policy allows, but does not require, the board to receive statements from interested parties and witnesses relevant to the complaint appeal. However, all matters involving discrimination or harassment allegations against the superintendent shall be promptly and thoroughly investigated by the board president or a designee.
- d) The board president will notify the complainant and any other person legally required to receive the decision in writing of its decision. If the complaint involves discrimination or harassment allegations against the Superintendent, the board president shall submit the decision within 180 calendar days after receiving complainant's written appeal.
- e) There is no appeal from any decision of the board unless authorized by law.
- 6. Formal complaints about the Superintendent shall be filed with the president of the board. However, complaints about the Superintendent do not include disagreement with the Superintendent's decision on appeal based on a complaint of discrimination, harassment, or action of any other employee who is not the Superintendent. Upon receipt of a complaint, the board president or his or her designee shall promptly and thoroughly investigate the complaint, and shall:
 - a) Coordinate with other school district staff, other than the superintendent, to determine if another procedure in policy or law requires the complaint against the superintendent to follow another procedure. If so, the board president will coordinate handling the complaint through that procedure. If another procedure applies, such as in the case of allegations of sex discrimination against the superintendent, the board president or, at his or her discretion, the full board will serve only to hear any appeal by a party to the complaint.
 - b) Determine whether the complainant has discussed the matter with the superintendent.
 - 1) If the complainant has not, the board president or designee will urge the complainant to discuss the matter directly with the superintendent, if appropriate.
 - 2) If the complainant refuses to discuss the matter with the superintendent, the board president shall, in his or her sole discretion, determine whether the complaint should or must be pursued further.
 - c) Strongly encourage the complainant to reduce his or her concerns to writing.
 - d) Determine, in his or her sole discretion, whether to place the matter on the board agenda for consideration at a regular or special meeting by the full board.
 - e) Respond to the complainant or appeal. If the complaint or appeal involves discrimination or harassment, the response shall be in writing and shall be submitted within 180 calendar days after the president received the complaint.

No Retaliation. The school district prohibits retaliation against any person for filing a complaint or for participating in the complaint procedure in good faith.

Special Rules Regarding Educational Services and Related Services to Students with

Disabilities. Students with disabilities and their families have specific rights outlined in state and federal law, including administrative processes by which they may challenge the educational services being provided by the school district. Therefore, the appeal process contained in this policy may not be used to challenge decisions made by a student's individualized education plan (IEP) team or 504 team.

Complaints about the educational services provided a student with a disability, including but not limited to services provided to a student with an IEP, access to curricular and extracurricular activities, and educational placement must be submitted to the school district's Director of Special Education. The Director of Special Education will address the complaint in a manner that he/she deems appropriate and will provide the complainant with a copy of the Notice of IDEA Parental Rights promulgated by the South Dakota Department of Education.

Complaints about the educational services provided a student with a disability pursuant to a Section 504 plan must be submitted to the school district's 504 Coordinator. The 504 Coordinator will address the complaint in a manner that he/she deems appropriate and will provide the complainant with a copy of the Notice of Section 504 Parental Rights adopted by the board of education.

Complaints about the educational services provided to a student who is suspected of having a disability must be submitted in writing to the school district's Director of Special Education or to the district's 504 Coordinator. The Director of Special Education or 504 Coordinator will either refer the student for possible verification as a student with a disability or will provide prior written notice of the district's refusal to do so.

Bad Faith or Serial Filings. The purpose of the complaint procedure is to resolve complaints at the lowest level possible within the chain of command. Individuals who file complaints (a) without a good faith intention to attempt to resolve the issues raised; (b) for the purpose of adding administrative burden; (c) at a volume unreasonable to expect satisfactory resolution; or (c) for purposes inconsistent with the efficient operations of the district may be dismissed by the superintendent without providing final resolution other than noting the dismissal. There is no appeal from dismissals made pursuant to this section.

Computer Network Use by Students

Students are expected to use computers and the Internet as an educational resource. The following procedures and guidelines govern the use of computers and the Internet at school.

Student Expectations in the Use of the Internet

- A. Acceptable Use
 - 1. Students may use the Internet to conduct research assigned by teachers.
 - 2. Students may use the Internet to conduct research for classroom projects.
 - 3. Students may use the Internet to gain access to information about current events.
 - 4. Students may use the Internet to conduct research for school-related activities.
 - 5. Students may use the Internet for appropriate educational purposes.
 - B. Unacceptable Use
 - 1. Students shall not use school computers to gain access to material that is obscene, pornographic, harmful to minors, or otherwise inappropriate for educational uses.
 - 2. Students shall not engage in any illegal or inappropriate

activities on school computers, including the downloading and copying of copyrighted material.

- 3. Students shall not use e-mail, chat rooms, instant messaging, or other forms of direct electronic communications on school computers for any unauthorized or unlawful purpose or in violation of any school policy or directive.
- 4. Students shall not use school computers to participate in on- line auctions, on-line gaming or file sharing systems including, but not limited to Aimster or Freenet and the like.
- 5. Students shall not disclose personal information, such as their names, school, addresses, or telephone numbers outside the school network.
- 6. Students shall not use school computers for commercial advertising or political advocacy of any kind without the express written permission of the system administrator.
- 7. Students shall not publish web pages that purport to represent the school district or the work of students at the school district without the express written permission of the system administrator.
- 8. Students shall not erase, rename, or make unusable anyone else's computer files, programs or disks.
- 9. Students shall not share their passwords with fellow students, school volunteers or any other individuals, and shall not use, or try to discover, another user's password.
- 10. Students shall not copy, change or transfer any software or documentation provided by the school district, teachers or another student without permission from the technology department.
- 11. Students shall not write, produce, generate, copy, propagate, or attempt to introduce any computer code designed to self-replicate, damage, or otherwise hinder the performance of any computer's memory, file system, or software. Such software is often called, but is not limited to, a bug, virus, worm, or Trojan Horse.
- 12. Students shall not configure or troubleshoot computers, networks, printers or other associated equipment, except as directed by a teacher or the system administrator.
- 13. Students shall not take home technology equipment (hardware or software) without permission of the system administrator.
- 14. Students shall not falsify electronic mail messages or web pages.
- 15. Students shall not alter system software or hardware that

has been installed and/or configure by the technology department.

- 16. Students shall not attempt to circumvent the District's technology protection measures/filters to access blocked sites.
- 17. Students shall not use VPNs or proxies under any circumstances.

Enforcement

- C. Methods of Enforcement
 - 1. The district monitors all Internet communications, Internet usage, and patterns of Internet usage. Students have no right of privacy to any Internet communications or other electronic files. The computer system is owned by the school district. As with any school property, any electronic files on the system are subject to search and inspection at any time.
 - 2. The school district uses a technology protection measure that blocks

access to some Internet sites that are not in accordance with the policy of the school district. Standard use of the Internet utilizes a proxy server-based filter that screens for non-curriculum related pages.

- 3. Due to the nature of filtering technology, the filter may at times filter pages that are appropriate for student research. The technology department may override the technology protection measure for the student to access a site with legitimate educational value that is wrongly blocked.
- 4. The school district staff will monitor students' use of the Internet through direct supervision and by monitoring Internet use history to ensure enforcement of the policy.
- D. Consequences for Violation of this Policy
 - 1. Access to the school's computer system and to the Internet is a privilege, not a right. Any violation of school policy and rules may result in:
 - a. Loss of computer privileges;
 - b. Short-term suspension;
 - C. Long-term suspension or expulsion in accordance with state law; and
 - d. Other discipline as school administration and the school board deem appropriate.
 - 2. Students who use school computer systems without permission and for non-school purposes may be guilty of a criminal violation and will be prosecuted.

Protection of Students

- E. Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA)
 - 1. The school will not allow companies to collect personal information from children under 13 for commercial purposes. The school will make reasonable efforts to disable advertising in educational computer applications.
 - 2. This policy allows the school to act as an agent for parents in the collection of information within the school context. The school's use of student information is solely for education purposes.
- F. Education About Appropriate On-Line Behavior
 - 1. School district staff will educate students about appropriate online behavior, both in specific computer usage units and in the general curriculum.
 - 2. Staff will specifically educate students on
 - a. Appropriate interactions with other individuals on social networking websites and in chat rooms.
 - b. Cyberbullying awareness and response.
 - 3. The School District's technology department shall inform staff of this educational obligation and shall keep records of the instruction which occurs in compliance with this policy

Conferences

Students' academic success has been closely linked to parental involvement in school. The school district has formal parent-teacher conferences twice per year.

In addition to formal conferences, classroom teachers will communicate with parents as necessary. Parents are encouraged to communicate with their student's teacher or the building administrator to discuss parental concerns, student needs or any other issue.

Copyright and Fair Use

The school district complies with federal copyright laws. Students must comply with copyright laws when using school equipment or working on school projects and assignments. Federal law prohibits the unauthorized reproduction of works of authorship, regardless of the medium in which they were created.

The "fair use" doctrine allows limited reproduction of copyrighted works for educational and research purposes. "Fair use" of a copyrighted work includes reproduction for purposes such as criticism, news reporting, teaching (including multiple copies for classroom use), scholarship, or research. Students who are unsure whether their proposed reproduction of copyrighted material constitutes "fair use" should consult with their teacher or building principal, review the school district's copyright compliance policy, and review

Copyright for Students found at <u>https://www.whoishostingthis.com/resources/student-</u> <u>copyright/</u>. You can find more information on copyright compliance requirements and permitted uses from the U.S. Copyright Office and the Library of Congress at the following site: http://www.loc.gov/teachers/usingprimarysources/copyright.html.

Damage to School Property

Students who damage school property either intentionally or unintentionally may be required to pay to replace or restore the property, at the discretion of the administration.

Discrimination and Harassment

The school district prohibits discrimination and harassment based upon or related to race, color, national origin, sex, religion, marital status, disability, age or any other unlawful basis that (1) has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive school environment, (2) has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's school performance, or (3) otherwise adversely affects a student's school opportunities. Students who believe that they have been the subject of unlawful discrimination or harassment due to their disability should contact the following Section 504 Coordinator: Linda Steele at 605-422-3800 (phone number), Linda.Steele@k12.sd.us (e-mail address) or in person at school. Students who believe that they have been the subject of unlawful discrimination or harassment due to their sex should contact the following Title IX Coordinator: Bill Clements at 605-422-3820, bill.clements@k12.sd.us, 1150 Northshore Dr., North Sioux City, SD 57049 (mailing address) or in person at school. Students who believe that they have been the subject of any other unlawful discrimination or harassment should contact the building administrator at 605-422-3800 (phone number), or in person at school. Students may report discrimination or harassment to any staff member who will then forward it on to the appropriate coordinator or administrator. The staff member will follow school district policies to respond to the report.

Dress Code

Students must come to school dressed in clean, neat, and appropriate clothing to conform to educational standards.

Students are prohibited from wearing the following attire:

- 1. Clothing displaying indecent, suggestive or profane writing, pictures or slogans
- 2. Clothing that advertises or displays alcohol, tobacco or any illegal substance
- **3.** Any item that covers the head except for safety purposes in industrial arts, religious or cultural beliefs and/or in special situations approved by the principal. This includes caps, hats, hoods, and bandannas.
- 4. Bare feet (some type of footwear must be worn)
- 5. Shorts may be allowed if appropriate.
- 6. Undergarments worn as visible clothing. This includes sports bras, boxers, and other undergarments.
- 7. Any clothing that could cause damage to others or school property
- 8. Costumes and/or those clothes intended only for entertaining or special occasions except during school-sponsored dress-up days
- **9.** Bare "midriff" (belly-button) styles, see-through and low-cut blouses, tube tops or strapless tops
- **10.** Pants and shorts worn below the waist so as to expose undergarments
- **11.** No blankets are allowed.

Students who violate dress code guidelines will be required to correct the violation by changing into something appropriate at school or returning home to change. A detention or suspension may be given to make up the time away from school. Repeated dress code violations may result in more severe consequences.

Driving and Parking Personal Vehicles

Students who drive to school are to park in the designated student lot only. Speed limit in the lot is 15 mph. Please observe that limit. Students are prohibited from parking in the Visitor parking lot and the Staff parking lot. Students who fail to park within a legal parking spot may receive disciplinary action. A continuous problem with improper parking or reckless driving may also result in a loss of the student's school driving privilege. Students will be required to provide vehicle information if requested.

Drug Free Schools

The board of education has adopted policies to comply with the Federal Drug- Free Schools and Communities Act. Students are prohibited from using, possessing, or selling any drug, alcohol, or tobacco while on school grounds, at a school activity or in a school vehicle. In addition, students who participate in the school's activities program should refer to the Activities Handbook which prohibits the use or possession of alcohol, controlled substances and tobacco at all times.

Any student who violates any school policy regarding drug, alcohol, and tobacco use will be disciplined, up to and including short-term suspension, long-term suspension, or expulsion from school and/or referral to appropriate authorities for criminal prosecution.

Emergency Contact Information

Parents must provide emergency contact information for each child enrolled in the district. Parents must promptly inform the school if this contact information changes during the school year.

Evacuations

The school district will hold routine evacuation drills throughout the school year. Classroom teachers will provide students with detailed instructions on building evacuations.

Food Service Program

The school district provides a food service program that is designed to provide adequate nutrition and an educational experience for students.

Breakfast

The school will serve breakfast daily. Students who qualify for free or reduced- price lunch also qualify for free or reduced-price breakfast. The cost of breakfast can be found on the district website.

Lunch

Lunch prices depend on the federal funding that the program receives. The cost of lunch can be found on the district website.

Payment for Meals

Students are encouraged to pay for meals several weeks in advance. Payment should be made online through Infinite Campus or cash/check may be sent to the building office.

The district will not allow students who have no funds available to purchase any "ala carte" items. The district will continue to provide meals to students until the student accrues a negative balance of one hundred dollars. Students who qualify for free meals will not be denied a reimbursable meal, even if they have accrued a negative balance from other food purchases.

If a student repeatedly lacks funds to purchase a meal, has not brought a meal from home, and is not enrolled in a free meal program, the district will use its resources and contacts to protect the health and safety of the student. Failure or refusal of parents or guardians to provide meals for students may require mandatory reporting to child protection agencies as required by law.

Collection of Delinquent Meal Charge Debt

The school district is required to make reasonable efforts to collect unpaid meal charges. Households will be contacted about unpaid meal charges and will be notified of the availability of the free and reduced meal program and/or establish payment plans and due dates by telephone, e-mail, or other written or oral communication. If these collection efforts are unsuccessful, the school district may pursue any other methods to collect delinquent debt as allowed by law.

Collection efforts may continue into a new school year.

Notice of Non-discrimination

In accordance with federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA. To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

- Mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410
- (2) Fax: (202) 690-7442; or
- (3) Email: program.intake@usda.gov

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the school district. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

Field Trips

Classes occasionally take field trips off school property for educational enrichment. A student's parent or guardian must authorize a student to participate in a field trip by signing a permission slip and providing it to the school before the field trip. Students who are not in good academic standing may not be allowed to attend field trips. Students must comply with the student code of conduct, any applicable extracurricular conduct codes, and all directives by trip chaperones.

First-Aid

First-aid items may only be used by school staff. Students who need first aid should ask for assistance from their classroom teacher or the nearest staff member.

Head Lice

Students found to have head lice or nits may be sent home. Upon discovering the presence of any indication of lice or nits, the student's parent(s) or guardian(s) will be notified, and

if appropriate will be asked to pick up the student from school.

The District may require the student to remain home until the district finds that no live lice or nits can be detected. The parent(s) or guardian(s) may be required to treat the student.

Health Problems Limiting Activities

We encourage healthy lifestyles and active play. Therefore, students should participate in daily recess and physical education classes. In certain extenuating circumstances due to health reasons, a child may occasionally need to sit out. In these cases, a doctor's note is required. A clearance to return to physical activity may be requested.

Parents should notify the school nurse and/or building principal if their student has any special health problems such as diabetes, asthma, or the like.

Homeless Children and Youth

Homeless students generally include children who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, as further defined by applicable state and federal law.

It is the school's policy not to stigmatize or segregate homeless students on the basis of their status of being homeless. Transportation for homeless students who enroll in the district shall be furnished by the district under the same guidelines applying to other students or if such transportation is necessary for compliance with federal law.

Each homeless child shall be provided services for which the child is eligible comparable to services provided to other students in the school selected regardless of residency. Homeless children shall be provided access to education and other services that such children need to ensure that they have an opportunity to meet the same student performance standards to which all students are held.

If a homeless child registered to attend school in the district is receiving family reconciliation services pursuant to state law, the district will work in cooperation with any county or department of social services in the district to jointly develop an educational program for the child. The district's homeless coordinator is Linda Steele who may be contacted at 605-422-3800.

Illness or Injury at School

Students who feel ill or are hurt while at school should seek immediate assistance from their classroom teacher or the nearest staff member. The school will contact parents to pick students up from school whenever necessary. In the event that parents cannot be reached, the school will call the emergency contacts provided by the parents.

When school officials determine that a student needs immediate medical attention but neither the parents nor the emergency contacts can be reached by phone, emergency services will be summoned or the student will be taken directly to the hospital.

Immunizations

All students must furnish a physician's certification that the student has received the following immunizations within 45 days of the start of classes:

- poliomyelitis;
- diphtheria;
- pertussis;
- rubeola;
- rubella;
- mumps;
- tetanus;
- meningitis; and
- varicella.

Exceptions. The student is not required to receive immunizations if the student can provide certification from a licensed physician that immunizations would endanger the student's health or the student's parent or guardian provides a written statement asserting adherence to a religious doctrine opposed to immunization.

Lockers and Other School Property

The school district owns and exercises exclusive control over student lockers, desks, computer equipment, and other such property. Students should not expect privacy regarding usage of or items placed in or on school property, because school property is subject to search at any time by school officials. Periodic, random searches of lockers, desks, computers, and other such property may be conducted at the discretion of the administration. The assignment of a locker is on a temporary basis and may be revoked at any time. School officials may inspect student lockers without any particularized suspicion or reasonable cause.

Lost and Found

All lost and found articles are to be taken to the building office. Students may claim lost articles there. Unclaimed articles will be donated to a local charity or otherwise disposed of after each semester.

Medications

Prescription medication. Parents/guardians must provide a physician's written authorization for the administration of the medication. Parents/guardians must provide their own written permission for the administration of the medication. The medication must be brought to school in the prescription container and must be properly labeled with the student's name, the physician's name, and directions for administering the medication.

Non-prescription medication. Parents/guardians must provide written permission for the administration of the medication. The medication must be brought to the school in the manufacturer's container. The container must be labeled with the child's name and with directions for provision or administration of the medication.

Page 34 of 73

The district reserves the right to review and decline requests to administer or provide medications that are not consistent with standard pharmacological references, are prescribed in doses that exceed those recommended in standard pharmacological references, or that could be taken in a manner that would eliminate the need for giving them during school hours. The district may request parental authorization to consult with the student's physician regarding any medication prescribed by such physician.

Self-Administration. Students in 8th grade or lower may not self-administer medication. Students in 9th grade or higher may self-administer medication in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. Students who violate this policy are subject to disciplinary action.

Medical Cannabis. Medical cannabis is not considered a "medication" under this provision. Medical Cannabis is addressed by District Policy 3055.

Media Center

Students must check out materials from the librarian on duty. Each borrower is responsible for all books checked out in his/her name. If a book is lost and not found by the end of the semester, the student must pay for it. Students must also pay for any damage they cause to library books.

Opting Out of Assessments

The District cannot approve requests to opt out of state assessments. South Dakota law does not provide an avenue for such requests.

Parental Involvement

The school district recognizes the unique needs of students who are being served in its Title I program, and the importance of parent and family engagement in the Title I program. Parent and family engagement in the Title I Program shall include, but is not limited to:

- 1. An annual meeting to which all parents of participating children will be invited to inform parents of their school's participation under this part, to explain the requirements of this part, and the right of the parents to be involved. Invitations may take the form of notes sent with students or announcements in the school newsletter. Additional meetings may be scheduled, based upon need and interest for such meetings.
- 2. An explanation of the details for the child's and parents' participation, including but not limited to: curriculum objectives, the forms of academic assessment used to measure student progress and the achievement levels of the challenging State academic standards, type and extent of participation, parental input in educational decisions, coordination and integration with other Federal, State, and district programs, and evaluations of progress.

- **3**. Opportunities for participation in parent involvement activities such as training to help parents work with their children to improve achievement. A goal of parent activities is to provide parents with opportunities to participate in decisions relating to the education of their students, where appropriate.
- 4. The district will, to the extent practicable, provide parents of limited English proficiency, parents with disabilities, parents with limited literacy, are economically disadvantaged, are of a racial or minority background or parents of migratory children with opportunities for involvement in the Title I Program. Communication to parents about student progress and the district's other Title I Program communications will be provided in the language used in the home to the extent practicable. Responses to parent concerns will be provided in a timely manner.
- 5. Opportunities for parent-teacher conferences, in addition to those regularly scheduled by the school district, if requested by the parents or as deemed necessary by school district staff.
- 6. The district will coordinate and integrate parental involvement programs and activities with other programs in the community. These may include cooperation with other community programs such as Head Start and preschools and other community services such as the public library.
- 7. Educate teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other school leaders, with the assistance of parents in the value and utility of contributions of parents, how to reach out to, communicate with and work with parents as equal partners.

Parties

Grades JK-5 classrooms may have seasonal parties during the year. Classroom teachers will contact families regarding specific details for each party. Parents should notify the classroom teacher if they do not wish their child to participate. Invitations for private parties and non-school-sponsored events may not be distributed at school unless all students in the class are invited.

Personal Items

The school provides the necessary equipment for classroom and school day activities. Students should not bring items such as athletic equipment, electronic devices, toys, or other similar personal items to school unless they have the prior permission of their classroom teacher or a school administrator. The school is not responsible for damaged or lost personal items or equipment.

Physical Education

The school district requires students to receive physical education to assist them in developing gross and fine motor skills. Students are required to wear appropriate shoes for P.E.

Physical Exam

All students in Grades 7-12 wishing to participate in athletics will provide evidence of a physical examination by a licensed physician in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SDHSAA.

Pictures

The school district arranges for a photographer to be present at school in the fall to take student pictures. Parents will be notified of the date. Included in the individual packet is a class composite. Parents who want pictures of their students or of their student's class composite may purchase them directly from the photographer.

Police Questioning and Apprehension

Police or other law enforcement officers may be called to the school at the request of school administration or may initiate contact with the school in connection with a criminal investigation. The building principal will make reasonable attempts to contact a student's parent for their consent and/or presence before the student is interviewed. In the event that a parent cannot be contacted after reasonable attempts, the student will be questioned only if the law enforcement officer identifies emergency circumstances requiring immediate questioning. A building principal or designee shall be present for such questioning solely to further school purposes or avoid duplication of the investigative process. The student will be brought to a private room and the contact will be made out of sight of others as much as practicable.

Protection of Student Rights

The Board of Education respects the rights of parents and their children and has adopted a Protection of Pupil Rights policy in consultation with parents to comply with the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA). The policy is available on the district's website or upon request from the district's administrative office. Parents may opt their child out of participation in activities identified by the Protection of Pupil Rights policy by submitting a written request to the superintendent. Parents may have access to any survey or other material described in the Protection of Pupil Rights policy by submitting a written request to the superintendent.

Public Displays of Affection

Students may not engage in public displays of affection. Prohibited conduct includes hugging, kissing, touching or any other display of affection that a staff member determines to be inappropriate.

Rights of Custodial and Non-Custodial Parents

The school district will honor the parental rights of natural and adoptive parents unless those rights have been altered by a court.

The term "custodial parent" refers to a biological or adoptive parent to whom a court has given primary physical and legal custody of a child, and a person such as a caseworker or foster parent to whom a court has given legal custody of a child.

The district will not restrict the access of custodial and non-custodial parents to their students and their students' records, unless the district has been provided a copy of a court order that limits those rights. If the district is provided such a court order, school officials will follow the directives set forth in the order.

The district will provide the custodial parent with routine information about his or her child, including notification of conferences. The district is not required to provide the non-custodial parent with such information on a routine basis but will provide it upon the non-custodial parent's request unless it has been denied by the courts.

A non-custodial parent who communicates to the district their desire to attend conferences regarding his or her child will be provided information about conference times so both parents may attend a single conference. The district is not required to schedule separate conferences if both parents have been previously informed of scheduled conference times.

If either or both parents' behavior is disruptive, staff members may terminate a conference and reschedule it with appropriate modifications or expectations.

Recess

Grades JK-3

Students must be dressed appropriately for the weather. Students go outside for daily recess if the temperature or "feels like" temperature is o degrees or above. Students must wear mittens/gloves, hats, and winter coats when the weather demands it. In addition, students must wear snow pants and boots to play in the snow.

Grades 4-8

Students must be dressed appropriately for the weather. Students go outside for daily recess if the temperature or "feels like" temperature is o degrees or above. Students are encouraged to wear mittens/gloves, hats, and winter coats when the weather demands it.

Playground Rules:

Students must follow these rules to keep the playground safe when they are using the playground as part of the school day:

- 1. Students must obey the playground supervisor at all times.
- 2. Students may not leave the playground area for any reason unless given permission by the playground supervisor.
- **3**. Students must use the playground equipment properly and in a safe manner.

Other rules guiding fair and safe play, while treating others with respect and kindness, will

apply and be appropriate for each building level. Students will be taught the applicable rules at the beginning of each school year.

Students who violate these rules will be disciplined with the loss of recess or other privileges, detention, and/or other consequences.

The school's playgrounds, equipment, and surrounding areas are generally not supervised except during scheduled recesses. Staff will supervise students when the students are using these areas as part of the school day or as part of a school activity. At all other times and in all other circumstances, the school district does not provide supervision of its playgrounds, equipment, and surrounding areas.

Self-Management of Diabetes or Asthma/Anaphylaxis

Subject to school policy, the school district will work with the parent or guardian in consultation with appropriate medical professionals to develop a medical management plan for a student with diabetes, asthma, or anaphylaxis. Parents desiring to develop such a plan should contact the district nurse.

Smoking and Tobacco

The use or possession of any tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars, or other tobacco or tobacco derivative products; vapor products or electronic nicotine delivery systems; alternative nicotine products; or any other such look-alike or imitation product, is not permitted on school property at any time.

Sniffer (Drug) Dogs

The administration is authorized to use sniffer dogs to minimize the presence of illicit items on school grounds. Students and staff are specifically notified of the following:

- **1.** Lockers may be sniffed by sniffer dogs at any time.
- 2. Vehicles parked on school property may be sniffed by sniffer dogs at any time.
- **3.** Classrooms and other common areas may be sniffed by sniffer dogs at any time students and staff are not present.
- **4.** If contraband of any kind is found, the student or staff member shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.
- 5.

Student Assistance

Parents who believe their students have any learning, behavior, or emotional needs that they believe are not being addressed by the school district should contact the student's teacher. If appropriate, the teacher may convene a team of teachers and support personnel who can explore possibilities and strategies that will best meet the educational needs of the student.

Student Fee Policy

The school district shall provide free instruction in accordance with the South Dakota State Constitution and South Dakota law. The district also provides activities, programs, and services that extend beyond the minimum level of constitutionally required free instruction. The district is permitted to charge students fees for these activities or to require students to provide specialized equipment and attire for certain purposes. This policy is subject to further interpretation or guidance by administrative or board regulations. Students are encouraged to contact their building administration, their teachers or their coaches, and sponsors for further specifics.

Student Illness

Students who suffer from a significant illness which has an actual or expected duration of six months or more may be eligible for accommodations and supports under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act or under the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act. The school will provide accommodations to students who are returning to school after a prolonged absence due to illness, including pediatric cancer, through a 504 plan or an IEP, as appropriate. The student's plan will include informal or formal accommodations, modifications of curriculum and monitoring by medical or academic staff as determined by the student's IEP team or 504 committee. Parents and staff will engage in ongoing communication about the needs of a student who is facing these circumstances.

Students who become ill at school will be sent to the building office where the school nurse or other school employee will determine the appropriate response. When a child is too ill to remain at school, a school employee will contact the child's parent(s) and arrange for the child to be picked up or sent home. If an illness or injury requires immediate medical attention, school officials shall attempt to contact the child's parent(s) regarding treatment for the child. If the parents cannot be contacted, school officials will call the provided emergency contacts. Students who show symptoms of a contagious disease may be sent home, and the district may require a physician's statement before allowing such students to return to school.

Transfer of Records Upon Student Enrollment

Upon request, the school discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll. The school is not obligated to inform parents when it makes a disclosure under this provision.

Complaints

Individuals who wish to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the school to comply with the requirements of FERPA may contact the Office that administers FERPA:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-4605

Student Schedule Changes

High School student schedule changes may be made during the first week of each semester. Students cannot change their schedule unless they first consult with appropriate instructors and have parental approval.

Tardiness

High School:

Students are expected to be through the door of the classroom when the bell sounds. Any student who is not in the classroom when the bell rings is tardy for class. See Gr. 4-12 Consequence Chart for further information.

Upper Elementary/Middle School:

Students are expected to be through the door of the classroom when the bell sounds. See Gr. 4-12 Consequence Chart for further information.

Telephone Calls

The school's telephone may be used by students only with permission of staff.

Title IX

The school district prohibits sex discrimination in any education program or activity that it operates and individuals may report concerns or questions to the Title IX Coordinator. The school district's Title IX policy, notice, and other information may be accessed at the following link: <u>https://www.dvschools.com/non-discrimination-policy</u>.

Transportation Services

The district contracts services for school buses as a convenience for students and parents. They represent a substantial investment, and students are expected to care for and respect them.

Transportation to School

Students who ride the bus to school will arrive in time for them to eat breakfast at school. Bus drivers endeavor to adhere to their schedule and will wait for riders only a short period of time so as not to jeopardize the time remaining for the rest of their schedule.

The contracted bus company will schedule bus routes, and questions concerning them

should be directed to that office. The Transportation Director's contact is: Valerie Trudell at 605-540-0566 or Valerie.Trudell@harlowsschoolbus.com.

Bus Regulations

Riding school vehicles is a privilege, not a right. The bus drivers have the same authority as teachers while transporting students. Students must comply with the following rules and all school conduct rules, code of conduct, and directives while riding in school vehicles. If misconduct is recurring, the student will not be allowed to ride the bus. Discipline related to bus behaviors is found within the Grades 4-12 Expectations/Consequences Chart.

A) Rules of Conduct on School Vehicles:

- 1) Students must obey the driver promptly.
- 2) Students must wait in a safe place for the bus to arrive, clear of traffic and away from where the vehicle stops.
- 3) Students are prohibited from fighting, engaging in bullying, harassment, or horseplay.
- 4) Students must enter the bus without crowding or disturbing others and go directly to their seats.
- 5) Students must remain seated and keep aisles and exits clear while the vehicle is moving.
- 6) Students are prohibited from throwing or passing objects on, from, or into vehicles.
- 7) Students may not use profane language, obscene gestures, tobacco, alcohol, drugs, or any other controlled substance on the vehicles.
- 8) Students may not carry weapons, look-a-like weapons, hazardous materials, nuisance items, or animals onto the vehicle.
- 9) Students may carry on conversations in ordinary tones, but may not be loud or boisterous and should avoid talking to the driver while the vehicle is in motion. Students must be absolutely quiet when the vehicle approaches a railroad crossing and any time the driver calls for quiet.
- 10) Students may not open windows without permission from the driver. Students may not dangle any item (e.g., legs, arms, backpacks) out of the windows.
- **11)** Student must secure any item or items that could break or produce injury if tossed about the inside of the vehicle if the vehicle were involved in an accident
- 12) Students must respect the rights and safety of others at all times.
- 13) Students must help keep the vehicle clean, sanitary, and orderly. Students must remove all personal items and trash upon exiting.
- 14) Video cameras may be placed on buses, at random, to monitor student behavior on the bus.

B) Consequences

Drivers must promptly report all student misconduct to the administration. These reports may be oral or written. Students who violate the Rules for Conduct will be referred to their building principal for discipline. Disciplinary consequences may include a note/phone call home to parents, suspension of bus riding privileges, exclusion from extracurricular activities, in-school suspension, short term or long-term suspension from school, and/or expulsion.

These consequences are not progressive, and school officials have discretion to impose any listed punishment they deem appropriate, in accordance with state and federal law and board policy.

C) Records

Records of vehicle misconduct will be forwarded to the appropriate building administrator and will be maintained in the same manner as other student discipline records. Reports of serious misconduct may be forwarded to law enforcement.

Changes to drop-off and pick-up locations throughout the year are made only in the event of a change of address or change of daycare. In these events, a five (5) day notice is required. Requests to be dropped off at a point **not** on the regular route will not be accommodated.

Daily changes to a student's transportation plans must be communicated to the building office no later than 45 minutes prior to dismissal.

Students who are not regular route riders may not ride the bus home with a friend.

Bikes & Skateboards

Students may ride bikes, rollerblades, and/or skateboards to and from school. They must be parked in the available bike racks. Rollerblades and skateboards must be stored in student lockers. Bikes, rollerblades, and skateboards may not be ridden on campus during school hours except to arrive/depart to/from school. The school is not responsible for lost, stolen, or damaged items. Failure to act responsibly may result in the removal of this privilege.

Transportation to Activities

The school district provides transportation for students who are participating in schoolsponsored events, and they must ride to those events in a school vehicle. Students who wish to take private transportation home from a school event must submit a release form to the sponsor that has been signed by that student's parent.

Video Surveillance and Photographs

The Board of Education has authorized the use of video cameras on school district property to ensure the health, welfare, and safety of all staff, students and visitors, and to safeguard District facilities and equipment. Video cameras may be used in locations deemed appropriate by the Superintendent. Video surveillance recordings will not be provided to parents.

Unless otherwise authorized, students are prohibited from making audio or video recordings during the school day on school grounds; when being transported to and from school activities or programs in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee; or at a schoolsponsored activity or athletic event, unless the recording is made in a manner permitted by the school for members of the public. In such an instance, the students remain subject to the district's appropriate use and student discipline policies. For example, students are not prohibited from making recordings of an athletic event for their personal use similar to a parent or other patron are permitted, subject to other applicable board policy. However, this policy generally prohibits students from using smart-speakers or other devices which actively or passively create or transmit audio or video recordings, including Google Home, Amazon Alexa, Apple HomePod, and AngelSense devices.

An exception will be made to this policy if photographs or video recordings are necessary to accommodate a student's disability or are required by the student's Individualized Education Plan (IEP) or Section 504 Plan.

In no event shall photographs or video recordings be taken or made in restrooms, locker rooms, or other areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy. Students who violate this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion.

Weather-Related School Closing

School shall be held on the dates set forth on the official calendar and shall not be closed or dismissed except when the superintendent or his or her designee determines that it is impossible or impracticable to hold school. When school is closed there will be no schoolsponsored activities held without the permission of the superintendent or building administrator.

Withdrawal From School

Students who are moving from the district must notify the school office.

SECTION TWO: ACADEMIC INFORMATION

Academic Lettering

The official school letter is awarded to students in grades 9-12 who earn a minimum grade point of 3.5 for two consecutive semesters. Students will receive a bar for each additional year they meet the required grade point average.

The National Honor Society and National Junior Honor Society

Grades 7-8 and Grades 10-12

Members of the Dakota Valley Chapter of the National Honor Society are selected by a faculty council. Criteria have been established by the National Honor Society and include the following:

- Scholarship
- Cumulative GPA 3.0
- Leadership
- Service
- Character

Honor Roll

High School:

There will be three categories of membership in the Dakota Valley Honor Roll for students with GPAs in one of the following brackets: 4.00, 3.50 to 3.99, and 3.00 to 3.49.

Upper Elementary/Middle School:

Academic honor rolls will be published each quarter. A 3.50 grade point average qualifies you for the Honor Roll. A "B" (3.00) average qualifies you for the Merit Roll. (All classes are included toward the Honor and Merit Rolls.)

Class Rank

Student class rank shall be determined by using a numeric grade point average derived from all classes graded on a numeric basis. To be included in the class ranking, a student must have received a numeric grade for each class in which he/she was enrolled.

Students who transfer into the school district no later than first semester of Junior year will be eligible to be included in class ranking and be eligible for valedictorian status.

Course Guide - High School

The high school course guide may be accessed by clicking <u>HERE</u>. The course guide is also available in the high school counselor's office.

Bell Schedule - High School

A Day	B Day
8:20 Warning Bell	8:20 Warning Bell
1A 8:25 to 9:55	1B 8:25 to 9:55
- Break	- Break
2A 10:05 to 11:35	2B 10:05 to 11:35
3A 11:40 to 1:40	3B 11:40 to 1:40
- 1st Lunch 11:35 to 12:00	- 1 st Lunch 11:35 to 12:00
- 2 nd Lunch 12:00 to 12:25	- 2 nd Lunch 12:00 to 12:25
- 3 rd Lunch 12:25 to 12:50	- 3 rd Lunch 12:25 to 12:50
4A 1:45 to 3:15	4B 1:45 to 3:15
1:20pm Dismissal-A DAY	1:20pm Dismissal-B DAY
8:20am Warning Bell	8:20am Warning Bell
1A 8:25 to 9:20	1B 8:25 to 9:20
- Break	- Break
2A 9:30 to 10:25	2B 9:30 to 10:25
3A 10:30 to 11:35	3B 10:30 to 11:35
4A 11:40 to 1:20	4B 11:40 to 1:20
- 1 st Lunch 11:35 to 12:00	- 1 st Lunch 11:35 to 12:00
- 2 nd Lunch 12:00 to 12:25	- 2 nd Lunch 12:00 to 12:25
- 3 rd Lunch 12:25 to 12:50	- 3 rd Lunch 12:25 to 12:50
Two Hour Late Start 10:20 Warning Bell First Period 10:25 to 11:35 Second Period 11:40 to 1:10 - 1 st Lunch 11:35 to 12:00 - 2 nd Lunch 12:00 to 12:25 - 3 rd Lunch 12:25 to 12:50 Third Period 1:15 to 2:10 Fourth Period 2:15 to 3:15	

Bell Schedule - UE/MS

Gra	ade 4 Schedule	Grad	des 5-8 Schedule
8:20	Warning Bell	8:20	Warning Bell
8:25-8:30	Morning Meeting	8:25-8:35	Morning Meeting
8:32-9:32	1 st Period	8:39-9:26	1 st Period
9:35-9:52	Recess	9:30-10:17	2 nd Period
9:55-10:36	2 nd Period	10:21-11:07	3 rd Period
10:38-11:19	3 rd Period	11:11-11:57	4 th Period –
			5 th /7 th Gr. Lunch & Flex Time
11:23-12:10	4 th Period – Lunch & Flex Time	12:01-12:47	5 th Period- 6 th /8 th Gr. Lunch & Flex Time
12:14-12:55	5 th Period	12:51-1:38	6 th Period
12:57-1:38	6 th Period	1:42-2:29	7 th Period
1:42-2:29	7 th Period	2:33-3:20	8 th Period
2:33-3:20	8 th Period (Accountability Time/Community Building)		

Seniors Only- Semester Test Reward System

All students will be required to take semester tests each semester. For seniors in the Spring semester, the following attendance reward is in place:

In the spring semester, seniors who are absent in a class LESS THAN THREE times and do NOT have more than 3 tardies are exempt from the semester test in that class.

- As an incentive for maintaining high grades, seniors who have achieved a 94% or higher will also receive this reward in the classes where they have a 94% or higher.
- Students who are enrolled in an AP course or Dual Credit course will be required to complete the semester test in those courses. If a student opts to take the AP exam, the student is not required to take the semester test.
- Any senior who has exhibited behavior throughout the school year which results in being assigned either ISS or OSS by the Principal the designee forfeits the right to earn the Semester Test Reward.

Seniors who have earned the reward may choose to take their tests in the spring in an attempt to improve their grade. If the semester test does not improve the grade, the test will not be counted against the grade.

This is a REWARD system. No student is punished for having missed three or more days

through the semester test reward for attendance. You must EARN the REWARD by being present in school.

An appeal process is possible where a student may appeal in writing (typed, dated, signed and hand delivered to the building principal 5 days prior to the first day of the senior's semester testing) their absences and state the reasons they feel they should be granted the reward even though the days of attendance to earn the reward have been exceeded. Being sick, family vacations, and similar absences are not granted as exemptions and are denied in the appeal process. Appeals are rarely granted as we do understand there is some luck involved in earning the reward, but the focus is on this being a reward and not a consequence.

Seniors Only – Senior Privileges

1st Quarter Requirements:

- Seniors who tested as Advanced or Proficient in at least TWO of the three areas of the SD Summative Assessments earn a reward of being released from study hall at the beginning of the school year
- To maintain senior privileges, students must:
 - Have no grade lower than a C-
 - Be punctual in returning to school. Attendance issues will result in privileges being removed.
 - Have no disciplinary infractions. Any behavior deemed inappropriate by the principal will result in privileges being revoked.
 - Not use the privilege time inappropriately or disrupt school routines.

2nd Quarter, 3rd Quarter, and 4th Quarter Requirements:

- Seniors who are on the Honor Roll (3.0 GPA and above) and have no grade lower than
 a C- earn a reward of being released from study hall at the beginning of the 2nd
 quarter.
- To maintain senior privileges, students must:
 - Have no grade lower than a C-.
 - $\circ~$ Be punctual in returning to school. Attendance issues will result in privileges being $\ddot{}$

removed.

- $\circ~$ Have no disciplinary infractions. Any behavior deemed inappropriate by the principal will result in privileges being revoked.
- Not use the privileged time inappropriately or disrupt school routines.

Report Cards

Report cards are available following the end of the reporting period. End-of- year report cards are sent home with students or mailed after final grades are posted at the UE/MS and HS levels.

Grades

DVHS Grading Scale

99-100 A+	90-91 B+	81-82 C+	72-73 D+
94-98 A	85-89 B	76-80 C	67-71 D
92-93 A-	83-84 B-	74-75 C-	65-66 D-

Grades 4-8 Grading Scale

98-100 A+	88-89.9 B+	78-79.9 C+	68-69.9 D+
93-97.9 A	83-87.9 B	73-77.9 C	63-67.9 D
90-92.9 A-	80-82.9 B-	70-72.9 C-	60-62.9 D-

Grades JK-3

Students in Grades JK-3 receive a standards-based report card indicating level of mastery with content. Students in these grades do not receive letter grades.

Academic Work Session – Grades 4-8

It is the goal of DV UE/MS to provide academic support for all students to learn and grow in their academic endeavors. Therefore, teachers may assign a student to a 30-minute before or after school academic work session to take place in the teacher's classroom. If assigned to a work session, the teacher will communicate directly with the student and the student's parent, giving them at least one day's notice to allow the opportunity to arrange for transportation. It is the responsibility of the parent to provide transportation. If the student does not attend the work session and no communication was provide from the parent to the teacher requesting a different time, the teacher may assign the student to an additional work session which may occur during the student's lunch/recess work session. Academic work sessions will take priority over attending practice for activities or athletics. It will be the responsibility of the students to inform their advisor or coach of their absences or tardiness.

Morning Session: 7:50-8:20 Afternoon Session: 3:25-3:55

Missing/Incomplete Assignments Grades 4-12

All assignments need to be completed by the end of the grading period. Any assignments not completed by the end of the grading period may result in a "o" recorded for those

Page 49 of 73

assignments.

Consideration for Entrance to Middle School Accelerated Math Courses

To be considered for entrance into the 6th or 7th grade Accelerated Math course, or the 8th grade Algebra I class, students must meet the following criteria:

- 1. Score above proficiency on their state summative assessment math test
- 2. Score above proficiency in the student's assigned grade level on MAPS testing
- 3. Achieve 80% or higher in Semester 1 and Semester 2 math course of previous grade
- 4. Receive Math Teacher recommendation for Accelerated Math course placement

To Maintain Enrollment in Middle School Accelerated Math Courses

To be maintain enrollment in Middle School Accelerated Math Courses, including Algebra I, students must meet the following criteria:

- 1. Score above proficiency on their state summative assessment math test
- 2. Score above proficiency in the student's assigned grade level on MAPS testing
- 3. Achieve 80% or higher in Semester 1 and Semester 2 accelerated math course
- 4. Receive Math Teacher recommendation for Accelerated Math course placement

Consideration for Entrance to Pre-Algebra

To be considered for enrollment in High School Pre-Algebra, the student must have received a 70% or below in either semester in 8th math, and the teacher must provide his/her recommendation.

Consideration for Entrance to High School Accelerated Algebra 2

To be considered for entrance into the High School Accelerated Algebra 2 class, the student must be in 10th grade, the teacher will consider the MAPS scores, and the student must earn a 91.5% or higher in both semesters of Geometry. To maintain enrollment in High School Accelerated Algebra 2, the student must earn a grade of 82.5% or above at the end of the 1st semester.

Grade Point Average (GPA)

The following numerical values are assigned to each letter grade to compute grade point averages (GPA) for awards and class rank:

ALL CLASSES: A=4.0 B=3.0 C=2.0 D=1.0 F=0

Other Academic Awards

The Presidents Academic Fitness Award The Good Citizenship Award Valedictorian Salutatorian The National Scholar/Athlete Award The Bausch and Lomb Science Award The Regents Scholarship Award The National Merit Scholarship Student of the Month Principal's Leadership Award

Co-Curricular Awards

Awards are also given by the following: Interscholastic Sports Programs Vocal and Instrumental Music Programs Drama Department Art Department Journalism Department Future Business Leaders of America

8th Grade Promotion

- 8th Grade promotion will be held on the morning of the last school day of the school year. 8th grade students who have been promoted will not be required to stay in school following the promotion ceremony.
- Students must be attending in-person classes at Dakota Valley full time in order to participate in the 8th grade promotion ceremony and to receive a promotion certificate and any scholastic awards.
- Students with more than 10% absences (not including extenuating circumstances, i.e. documented medical/health, bereavement) and who are not in good academic standing will not be recommended for promotion to the 9th grade. Students who are not recommended for promotion will not be eligible for participation in the promotion ceremony.
- Any 8th grade student who is suspended at the time of promotion will not be allowed to participate or attend the promotion ceremony.

Valedictorian

All students earning a 4.0 GPA in the first seven semesters of high school are identified as Valedictorian and will receive Valedictorian medals.

Honor Cords

All students earning at least a 3.0 GPA in the first seven semesters of high school shall wear special honor cords at commencement.

Graduation Speakers

DVHS will have three or more senior students speak during the graduation ceremony.

Page 51 of 73

- Top ranked Valedictorian based on GPA, ACT, and Smarter Balanced scores (If multiple students are tied, all of the students with a tied score will speak at graduation)

- Next highest ranked Valedictorian based on GPA, ACT, and South Dakota Summative Assessment scores (If multiple students are tied, all of the students with a tied score will speak at graduation)

- A class representative will be selected by the senior class and high school staff to give a commencement address.

***A student's behavior record may exclude a student from speaking at graduation.

Selection of Senior Academic Representatives

For year-end honors where the school is asked to send one representative from the senior class solely based upon academics, the seniors will be rated on the following formula: GPA * 250 = ______1000 being the most points possible ACT * 27.777 = ______999.972 being the most points possible

The two scores will be added together to sort the students, as several of the awards only allow one nominee from our school. The highest totaled student would get to pick which event they wish to attend, with the second highest picking next, the third picking third, etc.

Early Graduation

This may be arranged and approved on an individual basis through the principal, requiring school board approval. One condition of approval is the ability to complete all required courses as set by the Dakota Valley Board of Education and the State of South Dakota.

Graduation Requirements

Students must earn 23 total credit hours in order to graduate from high school. Note that locally the minimum is 23 credits instead of the minimum 22 credits as established by the state.

- unit of U.S. history and one-half unit of U.S. government;
- Mathematics that includes one unit of Algebra I;

Required courses and credit hours that students must complete in order to qualify for the Dakota Valley High School Diploma are:

- Four units or more of language arts that include the following:
 - One unit of writing;
 - One-half unit of speech or debate; and
 - One unit of literature that must include one-half unit of American literature;
 - One and a half units of electives

- Three units each of:
 - Social studies that include one
 - Science that includes one unit of biology;
- One unit or more of the following in any combination:
 - Approved career and technical education courses;
 - A capstone experience; or
 - World languages;
- One unit of fine arts;
- One-half unit of each of the following:
 - Personal finance or economics;
 - Physical education;
 - $\circ \quad \text{Health or health integration} \\$
- Six and one-half units of electives.
- Students must be enrolled in seven (7) classes, except for the second semester of their senior year.
- During the second semester of their senior year, students will be required to enroll in a minimum of four (4) classes. The Student Aide course will not count toward eligibility requirements. In order to be eligible for school activities and/or athletics, students must be enrolled in a minimum of 4.0 credits.
- One semester of class, when successfully completed, earns one-half (1/2) unit.
- If a senior is within 1 credit or less of meeting all graduation requirements, the student is allowed to participate and walk in the graduation ceremony. A determination of participation will be made by the school counselor and principal after 2nd semester grades have been submitted.
- All requirements must be fulfilled before receiving a diploma.
- Students may fulfill a required course in an approved secondary program outside the district if they have failed to successfully complete that course at Dakota Valley High School, with administrative approval.
- Students' class standings will be decided based on the following credit counts:
 - Seniors 16, Juniors 10, Sophomores 4, and Freshmen eighth grade completion.

• Schedule changes should be kept to a minimum and will only be considered for legitimate reasons. Schedules changes will not be accepted following the first full week of school. Procedures and guidelines for schedule changes are contained in the course guide.

Transfer students must meet the minimum hour requirement for graduation both in terms of total number and specific subject areas. Substitutions may be made for deficiencies in required courses, provided that it was not possible to include the courses on the student's schedule while enrolled at this school district.

Students who receive special education services are mainstreamed into the regular education curriculum when appropriate. The curriculum content of regular education classes may be modified to accommodate the individual needs and abilities of verified special education students. Each curriculum modification will be included on the student's Individual Education Plan by the Multi-Disciplinary Team and/or school staffing teams composed of special and regular education staff. Hours in special education may be counted toward a high school diploma.

Parents of students who may not qualify for their high school diploma because of academic deficiencies will be notified of this possibility by the beginning of the second semester of the student's senior year.

SECTION THREE: STUDENT DISCIPLINE

General Discipline Philosophy

The school district has the authority to discipline students who behave inappropriately on the way to school, at school, during lunch, on the way home, and at all school activities (home and away or any time while on school or district property).

The school district's discipline is guided by the following principles:

- 1. The school district's discipline policy is intended to ensure that students take responsibility for their behavior.
- 2. Behavior expectations and the consequences for failing to meet those expectations will be clearly communicated to all students and their parents.
- 3. The severity of consequences for violating behavior expectations will generally be progressive in nature. That is, consequences will increase with each instance of misconduct; however, each instance will be assessed on its own facts, and consequences will be imposed based on the severity of the misconduct.
- 4. Parents play a vital role in supporting and reinforcing the school district's expectations of their students.
- 5. Behavior expectations apply to all students; consequences are enforced consistently without regard to a student's academic record or achievement.
- 6. Students who participate in extracurricular activities and who receive school-related suspensions will face extended suspensions from participation in extracurricular activities. See Grades 4-12 Discipline Matrix for details.

Extracurricular activities including athletics, cheerleading, band, chorus, and club activities, are governed by the Student Activity Handbook. Students who are involved in extracurricular activities may face consequences related to the activity in addition to the consequences discussed in this handbook.

The school district reserves the right to refer to the appropriate non-school agency any act or conduct of its students which may constitute a crime under federal, state, county, or local law. The administration will cooperate with these agencies in their investigations.

Forms of School Discipline

Administrative purposes or personnel may take actions regarding student behavior that are reasonably necessary to aid the student, further school purposes, or prevent interference with the educational process. Such actions may include, but need not be limited to, counseling of students, parent conferences, referral to restorative justice practices or services, rearrangement of schedules, requirements that a student remain in school after regular hours to do additional work, restriction of extracurricular activity, or requirements that a student receive counseling, psychological evaluation, or psychiatric evaluation upon the written

consent of a parent or guardian to such counseling or evaluation. The actions may also include in-school or out- of-school suspensions. When in-school suspensions, after-school assignments, or other disciplinary measures are assigned, the student is responsible for complying with such disciplinary measures; a failure to serve such assigned discipline as directed will serve as grounds for further discipline, up to expulsion from school. District administrators may develop building- specific protocols for the imposition of student discipline.

In this section, references to "Principal" shall include building principals, the principal's designee, or other appropriate school district administrators.

Any student who is suspended or expelled from school pursuant to this section may not participate in or attend any school activity during the duration of that exclusion.

Leaving School

Students will not be permitted to leave the building before dismissal time without the consent of the principal or principal's designee. Students must check out in the building office prior to leaving school. Students leaving school without permission will serve one (1) day of in-school suspension. Repeat offenses may result in progressive disciplinary action.

After School Sessions and Detentions

Teachers and administrators may require students to stay after school or to serve a detention when the student violates any of the rules contained in this handbook or violates classroom-specific conduct rules set by individual teachers.

Students who ride the bus home from school will be given a 24-hour notice of after-school time or a detention so that the parents may make plans to pick up the student on the day the detention is served.

- <u>Detentions</u> are 30 minutes, served in the office or the detention room designated by the building principal.
- Detentions take precedence over all extracurricular activities and/or after-school jobs.
- Detentions will be served Monday through Thursday, before or after school.
- A student shall serve the detention either the day it is assigned or as soon as possible. Failure to do so will result in doubling of the time.Failure to serve the detention will result in a one-day, in-school suspension.

Saturday School

The student missing work list will go out to students, teachers, and parents on scheduled Fridays. Students with five or more missing assignments on Friday will be assigned to

Saturday School.

If five or more missing assignments remain, students will be expected to attend the Saturday school session that week (9am-12am). Saturday School will take place 1-2 times per month – scheduled at the beginning of each school year.

In-School Suspension

In-school suspension may be imposed by the principal or designee for violation of school rules or policy where the infraction does not necessarily warrant removal from school by suspension. Students will not have their phones during ISS. Students not completing their In-School Suspension will face further disciplinary action.

Short-Term Suspension

The Principal or the Principal's designee may exclude a student from school or any school function for a period of up to ten school days (short-term suspension) on the following grounds:

- 1. Conduct constituting grounds for expulsion as hereinafter set forth; or
- 2. Other violations of rules and standards of behavior adopted by the board of education or the administrative or teaching staff of the school, which occur on or off school grounds, if such conduct interferes with school purposes or there is a nexus between such conduct and school.

The following process will apply to short-term suspensions:

- The Principal, Principal's designee or Superintendent shall give oral or written notice to the student as soon as possible after discovery of the alleged violation, stating the facts that form the basis for the suspension.
- The student shall be given the opportunity to respond to the alleged violation.
- If a student is suspended, the principal, principal's designee or superintendent shall give the parent or guardian oral notice of the suspension, if possible. This notice shall be provided directly to the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor.
- The student may be removed from the school's premises following either the written or oral notice, described above, or if the student's presence poses a continuing threat or danger, in which case the student may be immediately removed from the school and transferred into the custody of a parent or law enforcement.
- If a student is suspended, the principal, principal's designee or superintendent shall send to the parent or guardian a written notice which provides information regarding the student's due process rights. This notice shall be provided directly to the student if

the student is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor. Students who are shortterm suspended may be given the opportunity to complete classwork, including but not limited to examinations.

Weapons and/or Firearms

Students may be disciplined for the possession of weapons and/or firearms pursuant to the board's separate policy on weapons and firearms or state law.

Long-Term Suspension

Students may be excluded by the principal from school or any school function for a period of more than ten school days but less than 90 school days (long- term suspension) for any conduct constituting grounds for expulsion as hereinafter set forth. The process for long-term suspension is set forth below.

- The student may be temporarily suspended at the discretion of the Superintendent if the Superintendent finds grounds for a long-term suspension from a class or classes. This suspension shall follow the procedures set forth above for short-term suspensions.
- The superintendent shall file a sealed, written report with the school board by the end of the fifth school day following the first day of the long-term suspension. The report shall include the facts of the situation, the action taken, the reasons for the action, and the superintendent's decision or recommendation. The report must remain in the possession of the school board secretary or business manager, sealed and unavailable for review by individual school board members, until the time set for a hearing.
- The superintendent shall send a copy of the report to the student's parent or to the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor at the same time the report is filed with the school board's secretary or business manager.
- The superintendent shall also send written notice to the student's parent or to a student who is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor of:
 - the rule, regulation, or policy allegedly violated;
 - the reason for the disciplinary proceedings;
 - notice of the right to request a hearing or waive the right to a hearing;
 - a description of the hearing procedure;
 - a statement that the student's records are available at the school for examination by the student's parent or authorized representative;
 - a statement that the student may present witnesses.
- The student, if of the age of majority or emancipated, or the student's parent may waive the right to a hearing in writing to the superintendent.
- If a hearing is requested, the superintendent shall give notice to each school board member of an appeal to the board for a hearing. The superintendent shall set the date, time, and place for the hearing and send notice by first class mail to each school board

member and by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the student's parent or to a student who is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor.

• If no hearing is requested or the hearing is waived, the action of the superintendent is final.

Hearing Procedure - Long-Term Suspension

The following process applies to any hearing requested and scheduled in relation to a long-term suspension:

- The board shall act as the hearing board and shall conduct the hearing.
- The school board shall appoint a school board member or a person who is not an employee of the school district as the hearing officer.
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to make an opening statement.
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to introduce evidence, present witnesses, and examine and cross-examine witnesses.
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to be represented by an attorney.
- The school administration shall present its case first.
- The hearing shall be closed to the public. A verbatim record of the hearing will be made and will be sealed pending court order.
- Witnesses shall be present only when testifying. All witnesses must take an oath or affirmation administered by the school board president or business manager.
- Each party may raise objections as to relevance and scope of the question.
- All relevant evidence shall be admitted, except that unproductive or repetitious evidence may be limited by the hearing officer.
- The hearing officer may ask questions of witnesses and may allow other school board members to interrogate witnesses.
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to make a closing statement.
- After the hearing, the school board shall continue to meet in executive session for deliberation. No one other than the hearing officer may meet with the school board during deliberation, except that the school board may seek advice during deliberation from an attorney. Consultation with any other person during deliberation may occur only if a representative of the pupil is present.
- The decision of the school board shall be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing and must be formalized by a motion made in open meeting. The motion shall omit the name of the pupil and must state the reason for the board's action. The school board shall notify the pupil or the pupil's parents in writing of the decision. The notice must state the length of the suspension or expulsion.
- The student may appeal an adverse decision by the school board to the circuit court.

Expulsion

Students may be excluded by the school board from school or any school function for a period

of not more than 12 consecutive months (expulsion) for violation of rules or policies, for insubordination or misconduct, or for aggressive or violent behavior that disrupts school or that affects a health or safety factor of the school or its programs. The following process applies to expulsion:

- The student may be temporarily suspended at the discretion of the Superintendent if the Superintendent finds grounds for expulsion from a class or classes. This suspension shall follow the procedures set forth above for short-term suspensions.
- The superintendent shall file a sealed, written report with the school board by the end of the fifth school day following the first day of the student's exclusion from one or more classes and request that a hearing be held before the school board. The report shall include the facts of the situation, the action taken, the reasons for the action, and the superintendent's decision or recommendation. The report must remain in the possession of the school board secretary or business manager, sealed and unavailable for review by individual school board members, until the time set for a hearing.
- The superintendent shall send a copy of the report to the student's parent or to the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor at the same time the report is filed with the school board's secretary or business manager.
- The superintendent shall send written notice to the student's parent or to a student who is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor of:
 - the rule, regulation or policy allegedly violated;
 - the reason for the disciplinary proceedings;
 - notice of the right to request a hearing or waive the right to a hearing;
 - a description of the hearing procedure;
 - a statement that the student's records are available at the school for examination by the student's parent or authorized representative;
 - $\circ~$ a statement that the student may present witnesses; and
 - $\circ~$ a statement that the student may be represented by an attorney.
- The superintendent shall set the date, time, and place for the school board hearing. The superintendent shall send notice of the hearing to each school board member by first-class mail and to the student's parent or to a student who is 18 years of age or older or an emancipated minor by certified mail, return receipt requested. If the superintendent recommends expulsion, the school board must act on the recommendation before it is implemented.
- The student, if of the age of majority or emancipated, or the student's parent may waive the right to a hearing in writing to the superintendent.
- If the hearing is not waived, the hearing shall be held on the date and at the time and place set in the hearing notice unless a different date, time, and place are agreed to by the parties.
- If the hearing is waived in writing, the school board may consider the matter at a regular or special meeting without further notice to the student or the student's parents

Hearing Procedure - Expulsion

The following process applies to any hearing requested and scheduled in relation to an expulsion:

- The board shall act as the hearing board and shall conduct the hearing;
- The school board shall appoint a school board member or a person who is not an employee of the school district as the hearing officer;
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to make an opening statement;
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to introduce evidence, present witnesses, and examine and cross-examine witnesses;
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to be represented by an attorney;
- The school administration shall present its case first;
- The hearing shall be closed to the public. The school board shall make a verbatim record of the hearing by means of an electronic or mechanical device or by court reporter. This record and any exhibits must be sealed and must remain with the hearing officer until the appeal process has been completed;
- Witnesses shall be present only when testifying. All witnesses must take an oath or affirmation administered by the school board president, hearing officer or other person authorized by law to take oaths and affirmations;
- Each party may raise any legal objection to evidence;
- All relevant evidence shall be admitted, except that unproductive or repetitious evidence may be limited by the hearing officer;
- The hearing officer may ask questions of witnesses and may allow other school board members to interrogate witnesses;
- Each party shall be provided the opportunity to make a closing statement;
- After the hearing, the school board shall continue to meet in executive session for deliberation. No one other than the hearing officer may meet with the school board during deliberation, except that the school board may seek advice during deliberation from an attorney who has not represented any of the parties to the hearing. Consultation with any other person during deliberation may occur only if a representative of the pupil is present; and
- The decision of the school board must be based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing and must be formalized by a motion made in open meeting. The motion shall omit the name of the student and shall state the reason for the board's action. The school board shall notify the student's parent or parents or a student who is 18 years of age or older or who is an emancipated minor in writing of the decision. The notice shall state the length of the expulsion.
- The student may appeal an adverse decision by the school board to the circuit court.

Grounds for Discipline:

The following conduct constitutes grounds for discipline when such activity occurs on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school- sponsored activity or athletic event. Students may also be disciplined for aggressive or violent behavior that disrupts school or that affects a health or safety factor of the school or its programs.

Grades 4-12 Expe	ctations/Conseque	ences Chart:
------------------	-------------------	--------------

BEHAVIOR	First Offense	Secon d Offens e	Third Offense	Fourth Offense
Academic Dishonesty *see student handbook	A student who cheats, plagi to discipline, which may inc			
Alcohol and Drugs *use, possession, distribution, paraphernalia	10-day suspension- Admin/parent conference required, notification to superintendent and school board for further action. SRO Notified. Counseling assessment recommended. Student must also complete an online prevention – education course.	10-day suspension- Admin/parent conference required, notification to superintendent and school board for further action. SRO Notified. Counseling assessment recommended.	Possible removal from school, pending hearing with the superintendent and or board of education.	

Assault on Student or Staff	Immediate three (3) to ten (10) day suspension, and referral to the superintendent and board of education. Admin/parent conference. SRO notified.	Removal from school pending a hearing with the superintendent and/or board of education. SRO notified.		
Bullying, which is unwanted, aggressive behavior among school-age children that involves a real or perceived power imbalance. The behavior is repeated, or has the potential to be repeated, over time. Examples: • Threatening another student • Spreading rumors • Attacking someone physically or verbally • Excluding someone from a group on purpose	School team will investigate claims of bullying with the purpose to identify the intent and then utilize restorative measures when appropriate. Teacher – Administration may assign consequences up to and including	1 - 3 days suspension with parent meeting.	3 - 5 days suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.	5+ days of suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.

	suspension.			
• Hazing				
Dangerous Items MACE, pepper spray, stink bombs, smoke bombs, lighters, or any other inherently dangerous substance or object.	School team will investigate with the purpose to identify the intent. Teacher – Administration may assign consequences up to and including suspension.	, ,	5+ day suspension	10-day suspension, with notification to Superintendent and school board
Dress Code See Student Handbook	Teacher reviews/reteaches provides the student an o clothes.			Teacher writes Office Discipline Referral for insubordination.
Disruptive Classroom Behavior(Minor) Disrupting instruction and the learning of other students in the classroom, including profanity. Disruption does not include occasionally engaging with instruction in a manner that is not aligned with classroom expectations (i.e. occasionally blurting something out or having a side conversation with another student).	Reteach Expectations. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	Student-Teacher conference. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.
Disruptive Classroom Behavior(Major) Preventing instruction for a significant time or acting in a way that significantly disrupts class, school, or a school sponsored activity.	1-3 day suspension	Up to 5 days suspension	Up to 7 days suspension	Up to 10 days of suspension with notification to the Superintendent.
Fighting Fighting with another student. Inciting or encouraging a fight, recording or filming a fight, or actively skipping class to witness a fight.	3-day suspension	5-day suspension	7-day suspension	10-day suspension, with notification to Superintendent and school board
Harassment of Staff Making threats or committing harassment based, in whole or in part, on a school employee's race, ethnicity, disability, religion, sex or other identifying characteristics. This behavior does not have to rise to the level of bullying, defined above. Examples: • Offensive name-calling • Intimidating, verbally or nonverbally • Profanity directed at a staff member	1 - 3 days suspension with parent meeting.	3 - 5 days suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.	5+ days of suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.	

Harassment of Students Making threats or committing harassment based, in whole or in part, on a student's race, ethnicity, disability, religion, sex or other identifying characteristics. This behavior does not have to rise to the level of bullying, defined above. Examples • Offensive name-calling • Intimidating another student, verbally or nonverbally	School team will investigate with the purpose to identify the intent. Teacher – Administration may assign consequences up to and including suspension.	1 - 3 days suspension with parent meeting.	3 - 5 days suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.	5+ days of suspension with parent meeting and student action plan.
Inappropriate Physical Contact Initiating an inappropriate physical act directed at another student. Examples include: • Pushing & Shoving • Horseplay • Displays of Affection	Student-Teacher conference. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.	1 - 3 days suspension with parent meeting.
Inappropriate Touching This includes engaging in activity or horseplay such as intentionally touching, including through clothing, the intimate parts of another person with any body part or object.	3-day suspension	5-day suspension	7-day suspension	10-day suspension, with notification to Superintendent and school board
 Inappropriate Use of Technology Examples may include but are not limited to: Using any device for games, chatting, or other non-school related activity Accessing or distributing inappropriate or explicit content Unauthorized access to systems, networks, or accounts. Sharing personal information without consent Downloading or installing unapproved software 	School team will inv Administration may assi and including suspension	gn consequences up to	School team will investigate. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences up to and including suspension	Loss of Technology. Teacher or Administration will assign consequences up to and including suspension.
Inhalants and Tobacco *use, possession, distribution, paraphernalia Smoking/Vaping/use or possession of Tobacco products or any device or product that contains nicotine or used for inhaling or ingestion unless used for medicinal purposes with prescription filed with nurse. If the inhalant device contains THC or other drugs, the administration will follow the consequences outlined for Drugs.	3-day suspension Student must also complete an online prevention – education course. SRO notified	5-day suspension Counseling assessment recommended. SRO notified	7-day suspension Counseling assessment recommended. SRO notified	10-day suspension Admin/parent conference required. Notification to Sup't for further action. SRO notified.
Insubordination Refusing to follow directions or truthfully respond to questions or requests of teachers, staff, or administrators.	Student-Teacher conference. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.	Teacher or Administration will assign consequences.

Personal Electronic Device Examples may include: • cell phone • air pods • iPads	Teacher confiscates the pick it up at the end of	item and turns it into the the school day.	e office. Student may	Administration assigns consequence and contacts a parent to pick up the device.
School Threat Making a threat targeted at the general population.	Referral to Superintendent and school board			
Sexual Harassment Making unwelcome sexual advances, requesting sexual acts or favors, or other inappropriate verbal, written, or physical conduct of a sexual nature.	School team will investi sexual harassment.	gate claims of harassmen	t and will follow district	policy regarding
Skipping Class Not being in an assigned class. Examples: • Leaving class or school without permission • Hiding in the restroom or other areas of the school • Failure to go to class	Student, Teacher, and Administrator will meet to determine how the student will make up lost instructional time. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	Student, Teacher, and Administrator will meet to determine how the student will make up lost instructional time. Teacher or Administration may assign consequences.	School team meeting including student, parents, teachers and administrators to create an attendance plan.	Consequences will be assigned by administrators.

Leaving School Without Permission	1-day suspension	2-day suspension	3-day suspension	4-day suspension
Tardy	Teacher documents	Teacher documents	Tardy Detention	Each additional Tardy results in an additional Tardy detention. Once a student reaches 7 Tardies in a class, it will be counted as an absence. Once a student reaches 10 Tardies in a single class, they will be assigned a 1-day suspension.

t meeting. with pare and stude plan. ay Referral to , with Superinte	ent action parent studer to endent for isciplinary thich may ong-term on or	ays of nsion with t meeting and nt action plan.	Up to 10-day suspension, with referral to Superintendent for further disciplinary action, which may include long-term suspension or expulsion
, with Superinte further di dent for action, wi ciplinary include lo ch may suspensio g-term expulsion or	endent for isciplinary rhich may ong-term on or		
av.			
, with dent for ciplinary ch may g-term or			
lamage, cost, and disrup ces may include: lestitution Vork detail Detention uspension	ption to the school pro		Referral to Superintendent for further disciplinary action, which may include long-term suspension or expulsion
ns and look-alike weap	ons in the student hand	dbook and distric	ct policy
	or ces will be assigned by lamage, cost, and disru ces may include: estitution Vork detail betention uspension eferral to Superintende ins and look-alike weap ents that may occur y chart, the admin	or ces will be assigned by administrators depend lamage, cost, and disruption to the school pro- ces may include: estitution Vork detail betention uspension eferral to Superintendent ins and look-alike weapons in the student han ents that may occur during the school v chart, the administration will act for	or ces will be assigned by administrators dependent upon lamage, cost, and disruption to the school process. ces may include: estitution Vork detail vetention uspension

NOTE: Students who receive an in-school or out-of-school suspension of any kind and are involved in extracurricular activities are subject to additional extracurricular participation consequences. *Bus suspensions do not count toward the extracurricular participation suspension. However, if the bus behavior warrants a school-based suspension, then the school-based suspension would count.*

All in-school and out-of-school suspensions carry the following extracurricular participation suspensions:

1-3 Day School Suspension = 2-week Extra Curricular Participation Suspension
4-6 Day School Suspension = 4-week Extra Curricular Participation Suspension
7-10 Day School Suspension = 6-week Extra Curricular Participation Suspension
Long Term School Suspension = One year from Date of Suspension Extra Curricular
Participation Suspension

Busing and Transportation				
BEHAVIOR	First Offense	Second Offense	Third Offense	Fourth Offense
Disruptive Bus Behavior (Minor) Disrupting driver and other students on the bus, out of seat while bus is in motion, not sitting in assigned seat, yelling, hands/heads outside of bus windows, not listening to the driver's directions	Reteach Expectations Administration may assign consequences	Student-Administrative Conference. Admin may assign consequences Admin/parent conference required,	1-3 Day Bus Suspension	3-5 Day Bus Suspension
Disruptive Bus Behavior (Major) Significantly impacted the safety of the driver and/or the students on the bus, profanity or hate speech directed at another individual, continued defiance and insubordination, vandalism, threatening or intimidating behavior	Up to 3 Days Bus Suspension	Up to 5 Days Bus Suspension	Up to 7 Days Bus Suspension	Bus Suspension, minimum 10 days, up to remainder of grading period
Fighting Fighting with another student, inciting or encouraging a fight, recording or filming a fight Any other behavioral offense will follow the school co	3-day bus suspension; 3-day school suspension	5-day bus suspension; 5-day school suspension	Bus suspension, minimum 10 days, up to remainder of grading period; 7 days school suspension	Bus suspension for remainder of the school year; 10 days school suspension with notification to Superintendent and school board

bus and school-based consequences.

Note: This flowchart will not cover all possible events that may occur during the school year. If a situation arises that is not specifically covered by this flow chart, the administration will act fairly and quickly to resolve the situation. In reaching a solution, the interest of the student, parents, school district, and community will be taken into consideration.

The length of any suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment shall be as provided or allowed by law.

Reporting Requirement to Law Enforcement

Violations of this section will result in a report to law enforcement if:

- 1. The violation includes possession of a firearm or weapon as defined by state and federal law;
- 2. The violation results in child abuse or neglect as defined by state law;
- **3.** It is a violation of the South Dakota Criminal Code that the administration believes cannot be adequately addressed by discipline from the school district;
- 4. It is a violation of the South Dakota Criminal Code that endangers the health and welfare of staff or students; or
- 5. It is a violation of the South Dakota Criminal Code that interferes with school purposes.

SDCL 13-32-6. Disturbance of school as misdemeanor. A person whether pupil or not, who intentionally disturbs a public or nonpublic school when in session or who intentionally interferes with or interrupts the proper order or management of a public or nonpublic school by acts of violence, boisterous conduct, or threatening language, so as to prevent the teacher or any pupil from performing his duty, is guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor.

Student Code of Conduct

This code is designed to provide a consistent, positive, and safe environment for the students in the Dakota Valley School District. This code applies to all students and covers all school activities, whether home or away, such as but not limited to athletics, dance, drill team, cheerleading, student council, band, choir, orchestra, debate and speech, (if the same are not related to courses for credit) and any other extra-curricular activity, including Homecoming and Prom activities. The graduation ceremony is defined as a culminating academic activity and is not considered a school activity. Therefore, the attendance or participation at graduation is not covered by the student conduct code.

All violations of this code must be reported to the principal or his/her designee, and in the case where the student is involved in athletics, the athletic director shall also be informed of the incident. All students must sign this form (part of student handbook) in order to participate in any of the activities listed above. All violations, which occur on school property, have additional penalties which are found in the K-12 section of the student handbook.

- A. Prohibited Student Conduct (on or off school property) is as follows:
 - **1.** The sale, distribution, use or possession of any mind-altering chemicals, including a controlled substance or marijuana.

Students who use prescription drugs or medical cannabis authorized by a licensed physician do not violate this Code of Conduct if the students conform to the prescription and appropriate school policies.

(Violations & penalties will be pursuant to state law, which are in addition to the violations and penalties outlined in this code.)

*** Note that the State of South Dakota has a specific law (13-32-9) that states that students involved with the legal system for drug related offenses will be ineligible to participate for one calendar year, which may be reduced to thirty (30) calendar days for completing an assessment and treatment program. The student is also ineligible for a minimum of two SDHSAA sanctioned events upon completion of the reduced suspension period. The one-year suspension for a 2nd offense may be reduced to sixty

(60) calendar days if the student completes an accredited

intensive prevention or treatment program. If the 14-day suspension for a second offense is reduced, the student is also ineligible for a minimum of six SDHSAA sanctioned events upon completion of the reduced suspension period. A student is ineligible for the remainder of his or her high school career for a third offense.

- 2. The sale, distribution, use or possession of alcohol.
- **3.** The use or possession of tobacco of any kind, including smoking or chewing tobacco, or devices or smokeless products which resemble the smoking of tobacco or any nicotine producing product.
- **4.** Disobedience of public laws resulting in adjudication or finding of guilt of any criminally related activities.

If a student violates # 2, 3, or 4 of the above prohibited conduct, the following penalties will be assessed. It is the intent and specific policy of the Dakota Valley School District that violations will be cumulative during the student's seventh and eighth grade years. At the commencement of the student's ninth grade year, all students will be considered to have no violations but all violations thereafter, grades 9-12, will be cumulative. Penalties for violation of the code are as follows:

NOTE: The reduction in suspension is not an option for any of the violations if the student had contact with law enforcement officials anytime during the violation.

First Violation - The student will be suspended and will not be allowed to attend or participate in any school or after school activity or extra-curricular activities for a period of fourteen (14) calendar days. However, the student must participate in any extra-curricular activity practices during the fourteen

(14) day suspension. If the student voluntarily admits the violation and reports the violation to the administration of his/her school, the school, in its sole discretion, may reduce the suspension to seven (7) calendar days and the imposition of fifteen (15) hours community or school service which must be completed prior to participating or attending any school activity.

Second Violation - The student will be suspended and will not be allowed to attend or participate in any school or after school activity or extra-curricular activities for a period of sixty (60) calendar days. If the student voluntarily admits the violation and reports the violation to the administration of his/her school, the school, in its sole discretion, may reduce the suspension to thirty

(30) calendar days and the imposition of thirty (30) hours community or school service which must be completed prior to participating or attending any school activity.

Third Violation - The student will be suspended and not allowed to attend or participate in any school or after school activities or extracurricular activities for twelve (12) months. If the student at their own expense completes an evaluation and completes a treatment program, the penalty will be reduced to ninety (90) days.

Fourth Violation and all subsequent violations - The student will be suspended and not allowed to attend or participate in any school or after school activities or extracurricular activities for twelve (12) months.

Violation of the suspension – If a student violates any of the above suspensions, consequences will be determined by the building administrator and activities director.

* All calendar day penalties define a day as ending at 11:59 pm. An example would be a 7-day penalty, which means that the student is ineligible to participate or attend school activities until 11:59 pm of the seventh day.

B. Appeal Process

During the appeal process, the student will be ineligible. If an appeal of the administrative decision is desired, the process is as follows:

- A. The Administration must meet with the student. If the parent(s) desire, the parent(s) may also meet with the Administration.
- B. In the event the student or parent/guardian believes that the action taken by the Administration is inappropriate, they may appeal the Administration's decision in the following manner:
 - 1. An advisory three (3) member panel of impartial school staff members shall review the case. Two (2) members of the review panel shall be appointed by the school principal. One (1) of these two (2) staff members may be chosen by the student, if so desired. The third (3rd) panel member will be designated by the superintendent of schools from the central administration staff.
 - 2. The student and his/her parent(s)/guardian(s) shall be notified when and where the review panel will meet, and they shall be allowed to appear before the review panel.
 - **3.** The review panel shall consider the circumstances and evidence and make its findings and recommendations in writing, to the student and parent(s)/guardian(s), and to the school principal. Responsibility for the decision of the appeal rests solely with the principal of the school.
 - 4. Following the decision, the student and parent(s)/guardian(s) shall have three (3) school days to file an appeal with the superintendent. The appeal shall be heard at the earliest feasible opportunity, but no later than seven (7) days following the filing of the appeal.
 - 5. If the appeal conducted by the superintendent is not acceptable, then an appeal may be made to the board of education at the next regularly scheduled board meeting, in closed session.
 - C. Good Behavior Clause
 - 1. If a student is found to be in violation of this code, he/she may be rewarded for subsequent good behavior. If the student maintains good behavior and is not in violation of this code for eighteen (18) months, then the student will move back

one level. An example would be that a student violates the code and is on their first violation in October of their 9th grade year. If the student exhibits good behavior and does not violate the policy again until December of their 11th grade year, the second violation will have occurred after 18 months of good behavior so the penalty for the second violation will be reduced to that of a first violation. This code applies to all students, regardless of whether or not they have signed a receipt form. For students wishing to participate in any school sponsored activities (as opposed to attending as a spectator), the student and parent will be required to sign and return this form prior to participating in that activity.

- D. Credible Witness
 - 1. Judgment as to whether a student has violated this code will be based upon an arrest, citation, or notification from Law Enforcement, self-admission, or court proceedings. Credible witness is defined as school staff, law enforcement, or parents of the violator. Additional witnesses may enter evidence to be considered if they are willing to submit information in a signed statement.
- E. Dates of Enforcement
 - 1. This code is in effect upon the first day of practice and/or the first day of school, whichever arrives first. The code remains in effect until the last school sanctioned event in the summer.

Title I SCHOOL-PARENT COMPACT

The Dakota Valley Elementary School and the parents of the students participating in activities, services, and programs funded by Title I, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) (participating children), agree that this compact outlines how the parents, the entire school staff, and the students will share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the school and parents will build and develop a partnership that will help children achieve the State's high standards.

School Responsibilities. Dakota Valley Elementary School will:

- Provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables the participating children to meet the State's student academic achievement standards.
- Hold parent-teacher conferences (at least annually in elementary schools) during which this compact will be discussed as it relates to the individual child's achievement.
- Provide parents with frequent reports on their children's progress.
- Provide parents reasonable access to staff.
- Provide parents opportunities to volunteer and participate in their child's class, and to observe classroom activities.

Parent Responsibilities. We, as parents, will support our children's learning in the following ways:

- Monitoring attendance.
- Making sure that homework is completed.
- Monitoring amount of television their children watch.
- Volunteering in my child's classroom.
- Participating, as appropriate, in decisions relating to my children's education.
- Promoting positive use of my child's extracurricular time.
- Staying informed about my child's education and communicating with the school by promptly reading all notices from the school or the school district either received by my child or by mail and responding, as appropriate.
- Serving, to the extent possible, on policy advisory groups, such as being the Title I, Part A parent representative on the school's School Improvement Team, the Title I Policy Advisory Committee, the District-wide Policy Advisory Council, the State's Committee of Practitioners, the School Support Team or other school advisory or policy groups.

RECEIPT OF HANDBOOK

Parents (or guardians) and students are required to sign and return the receipt form below before_____. *In lieu of completing a paper copy of this receipt of handbook, during the online registration process, an acknowledgement of receipt of handbook must be completed.*

PARENT/STUDENT AGREEMENT

I have received and read the Student Handbook that describes the Dakota Valley School District's discipline policies, regulations, rules, and expectations to be followed by students, including the Drug Free School Policy. My child and I have discussed these policies and understand that we must comply with them.

RECOGNITION OF POTENTIAL AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS

The rules and information provided in this handbook may be supplemented or amended by the School District's administration at any time, consistent with applicable law and board policy. By signing below or acknowledging during the online registration process, you agree that you will read any such information and communications, discuss them with your child, and recognize that you must comply with all rules, procedures, and requirements as they apply at that time.

Student's Signature Date	
Cell Phone Number (Optional)	Cell Phone Number (Optional)
Parent/Guardian's Signature Date	Parent's Email Address (Optional)
Parent's Email Address (Optional)	Cell Phone Number (Optional)